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Date of report

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, DC 20549

FORM 8-K

CURRENT REPORT

PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE

SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

(Date of earliest event reported): July 13, 2001

PerkinElmer, Inc.

(Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in Charter)

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Massachusetts 1-5075
<S> <C>
(State or Other Jurisdiction (Commission

of Incorporation)

</TABLE>

File Number)

45 William Street, Wellesley Massachusetts 02481

(Address of Principal Executive Offices) (Zip Code)

Registrant's telephone number, including area code: (781) 237-5100

Not Applicable

(Former Name or Former Address, i1f Changed Since Last Report)

ITEM 5. OTHER EVENTS.

On

Systems business.

July 13, 2001 the Board of Directors of PerkinElmer, Inc. (the
"Company") voted to authorize the sale of the Company's Security and Detection

Accordingly, the Company has accounted for the Security and

Detection Systems business as a discontinued operation in accordance with
Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 30, Reporting the Results of

Operations.

Therefore,

the results of operations of the Security and Detection

Systems business have been segregated from continuing operations and reported as
a separate line item on the Company's consolidated income statements for the
three years ended December 31, 2000 and the three months ended April 1, 2001 and

April 2, 2000.

The following statements and other information are included in

this filing to reflect the Security and Detection Systems business as a

discontinued operation. In addition, the following statements give effect to the
two-for-one stock split which was effected on June 1, 2001 by means of a 100%
stock dividend to stockholders of record as of May 15, 2001.

PERKINELMER, INC.

I. ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

A. Consolidated Income Statements for the three years ended

December 31, 2000

B. Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2000 and

January 2, 2000

C. Consolidated Statements of Stockholders'
years ended December 31, 2000

Equity for the three

D. Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three years

ended December 31, 2000
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F. Report of Independent Public Accountants
II. OTHER ANNUAL INFORMATION:
A. Selected Financial Information for the five years ended
December 31, 2000
B. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations
and Financial Condition Relating to Annual Financial
Information
ITT. INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED) :
A. Consolidated Income Statements for the three months ended
April 1, 2001 and April 2, 2000
B. Consolidated Balance Sheets as of April 1, 2001 and December
31, 2000
C. Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three months
ended April 1, 2001 and April 2, 2000
D. Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
IV. OTHER INTERIM INFORMATION:
A. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations
and Financial Condition Relating to Quarterly Financial
Information
V. FORWARD LOOKING INFORMATION AND FACTORS AFFECTING FUTURE PERFORMANCE
I. ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
I A. PERKINELMER, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS FOR THE THREE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,
2000
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
(IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA)
<S>
SALES
ProdUCE S v ittt e e e e e e e e e e
LS e I =

E. Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

O AL SALE S ittt it ittt et ittt ettt et ittt et aaeeeeeeneeeeeennneeeenn
Cost of Sales
Products
Services
Revaluation of Acquired Inventory

Total Cost of Sales
Selling, General and Administrative Expenses
Research and Development Expenses
In-Process Research and Development Charges
Restructuring Charges, Net
Asset Impairment Charges
Gains on Dispositions

OPERATING INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Other Expense, Net

Income From Continuing Operations Before Income Taxes
Provision for Income Taxes

Income from Continuing Operations . ...ttt ittt ineineennnnn
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations, Net of Income Taxes
Gain on Disposition of Discontinued Operations, Net of Income Taxes
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Three Years Ended

2000 1999 1998
<C> <C> <C>

$ 1,398,182 $ 1,127,138 $ 714,697
189,185 149,008 62,985
1,587,367 1,276,146 777,682
851,146 685,875 447,961
79,572 98,361 48,799
1,818 9,857 -
932,536 794,093 496,760
403,840 318,267 191,840
79,390 68,157 42,268
24,300 23,000 2,300
1,764 11,765 48,151
-- 18,000 7,400
(39,041) (17,777) (125,822)
184,578 60,641 114,785
(39,515) (15,239) (825)
145,063 45,402 113,960
56,596 17,871 35,569
88,467 27,531 78,391
(2,400) 16,505 23,611
4,453 110,280 --
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NET INCOME & ittt ittt it ittt ittt et eeeeete e teieeeeaenenenenennens S 90,520 S 154,316 S 102,002

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE:

Continuing OpPerations .. it ettt ettt ettt ettt eeeeeneannnn $ .90 $ .30 $ .87
Discontinued Operations . ... ...ttt ittt ittt einnennnnn .02 1.39 .26
NEL TNCOME & ettt ettt et e e e e et e e et e e et a e e e e e e e e eeeaeeeen $ .92 $ 1.69 $ 1.13

DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE:

Continuing OPerations ..ttt it tie ittt tee et eneeaeeneeennn $ .86 S .30 $ .85

Discontinued Operations . ...t ittt ittt ittt ittt .02 1.36 .26

D S S I o o) 11T $ .89 $ 1.66 $ 1.11
</TABLE>

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.
4
I B. PERKINELMER, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2000 AND JANUARY 2, 2000
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
(IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA) 2000 1999
<S> <C> <C>
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash EqUivalents ...ttt ittt ittt ittt ittt nnnenns $ 121,428 S 128,841
Accounts Receivable, Nl ..ttt ittt ittt ettt et ettt e et eeeeeeeennns 329,312 324,724
BT o ol eI = 209,043 194,844
Other CUTTENT ASSEE S ittt ittt ittt ittt et ettt eee et eeneeeeeeeeeneeeeeeeeennnnn 170,502 140,021
Net Assets of Discontinued Operations ........i.iiiiiiiiiiiteeeeeneeneennnn 71,430 15,435
TOTAL CURRENT ASSE TS &t ittt ittt ettt ittt oot teanenneeeeeesnneeeeeeeennneneeeeeennnns 901,715 803,865

Property, Plant and Equipment:

2 S o = T 545,962 486,189

Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization ..........iiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiann (272,962) (262,621)
Net Property, Plant and EQUIPMENT ...ttt ittt ittt ettt ettt teteeeeeeeeeenens 273,000 223,568
B 00T o 1Y o = 36,226 14,197
Intangible AssSets, NMet ittt ittt ettt et e et e e e e 918,065 591,950
[ 80 o S a2 =Y N i 103,124 63,313
B0 P 0 $ 2,232,130 $ 1,696,893

Current Liabilities:

F 0 ook ol =S D T o X S 185,411 S 382,162
ACCOUNTS Payable ittt it it e e e e e e e e e 135,632 137,036
Accrued RestrUCTUILING CoOStS & ittt it ittt ettt et ettt e e et eeeeeeeeeeeeaeaannn 53,344 41,759
ACCTUEA EXDENSES vttt it ittt ittt ettt et e teeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeenaens 315,026 273,657
TOTAL CURRENT LIABI LI T I S i ittt ittt ittt ettt ettt ettt tesnneeeeeeeennnneeeeeennnns 689,413 834,614
Long=Term DeD T v it ittt it it e et e et e et e et e et e et e e e e e e et e e 583,337 114,855
Long-Term Liabilities ..ttt ittt e ettt ettt ettt 230,991 196,648

Commitments and Contingencies
Stockholders' Equity:
Preferred Stock -- $1 par value, authorized 1,000,000 shares; none issued or

LR B = B 0T B 1o Yo - --
Common Stock -- $1 par value, authorized 300,000,000 shares; issued

122,908,000 shares in 2000 and 120,204,000 in 1999 .......ciiiiiiinnenn. 122,908 120,204
Capital in Excess 0f Par Value ...ttt ittt eeeeenenenenennnnnns 37,060 -
Retained Earnings ..ttt ittt ittt et ettt et e et e et e et et e et e 835,917 701,907
Accumulated Other Comprehensive LOSS ...ttt ittt eeneeeeeneeneeneenens (39,042) (14,040)
Cost of Shares Held in Treasury -- 23,360,000 shares in 2000 and

27,472,000 shares In 1990 ...ttt ittt et ettt ettt ettt et e e, (228,454) (257,295)
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Total Stockholders' EqUity .ttt ittt ittt ittt ettt nenennn 728,389

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY .ttt it in it initenennenenenenenenns $ 2,232,130

</TABLE>

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.

I C. PERKINELMER, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY FOR THE THREE YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2000

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY
FOR THE THREE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
COMPREHENSIVE COMMON RETAINED
(Dollars in thousands except per share data) INCOME STOCK EARNINGS
<S> <C> <C> <C>
BALANCE, DECEMBER 28, 1007 ...ttt ittt ettt e e et et eeaeeaeens $ 120,204 $480,277
Comprehensive income:
J LS S 15 o oo ) 1T $ 102,002 - 102,002
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Gross foreign currency translation adjustments. .............. 4,608 -
Reclassification adjustment for translation losses realized
upon sale of Sealol Industrial Seals.. .....iuiniiiieennennnnn 3,115 -—
Unrealized losses on securities arising during the period..... (137) -=
Other comprehensive 1NCoOmMe .. ... ...ttt ittt teenannns 7,586
Comprehensive INCOmME. v ittt ittt ittt ittt it ittt et e e $ 109,588
Cash dividends ($.28 per share) .. ...ttt ntieteeneeenenenenens -= (25,408)

Exercise of employee stock options and related income tax

010 0 S T = -— 6,618

Purchase of common stock for treasury........oeiiuiiiiiinnnnennns -

BALANCE, JANUARY 3, 19090 ..ttt ittt ettt ettt it e e 120,204 563,489
Comprehensive income:
L S 15 o oo ) 111 $ 154,316 - 154,316
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Foreign currency translation adjustments.............ccoiuonn (17,804) -=
Unrealized gains on securities:
Gains arising during the period......... ... 93
Reclassification adjustment........c.oiiiiiiiiiiiiiiniinnnns (58)
Net unrealized gains. .. ...ttt ittt ittt teeieaennns 35 -
Other comprehensive 10SS. ...ttt ittt ittt ittt tn it ininieenens (17,769)
Comprehensive INCOME ...ttt ittt ittt ittt eeneeneens $ 136,547
Cash dividends ($.28 per share) ... iiiiiti it teeeeeeeenenennns -= (25,499)
Exercise of employee stock options and related income tax
@13 o L ol -— 8,369
Issuance of common stock for employee benefit plans. .............. -= 1,232

Purchase of common stock for treasury. ...........iiuiiiiiiiiiinan.. -

BALANCE, JANUARY 2, 2000. ...ttt ittt ettt tiietne et ennenn 120,204 701,907
Comprehensive income:
L LS S 15 LT 11T $90,520 -= 90,520
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Foreign currency translation adjustments .............c0c0u.n (25,484) -=
Unrealized gains on securities:
Gains arising during the period ......... ... 481
Reclassification adjustment ...........iiuiiiiiiiiiiininnnnn 1
Net unrealized gains ...ttt ittt ittt ittt tinienennn 482 -
Other comprehensive 10SS ...ttt ittt ittt et teeteaaeanenns (25,002)
Comprehensive INCOME ...ttt ittt ittt it ittt ettt enenens $ 65,518
Cash dividends ($.28 per share) . ...iiiiiii i ntieteeneeenenennnens -= (27,533)

Exercise of employee stock options and related income tax

010 o S T = -— 16,000
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Issuance of common stock for employee benefit plans................
Purchase of common stock for treasury.. ........iuiiiuiiiniiiiinnnnns

Mergers, acquisitions and other........ ...ttt iininnnn.
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2000 ... .ttt ittt ettt et e teeeeaeeaeeneeneens
</TABLE>

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

ACCUMULATED

OTHER

COMPREHENSIVE
(Dollars in thousands except per share data) INCOME (LOSS)

<S> <C>
BALANCE, DECEMBER 28, 1007 ..ttt ittt ettt et et et eeaeeaenns $ (3,857)
Comprehensive income:
S o 5 oo 1T --
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Gross foreign currency translation adjustments................ 4,608
Reclassification adjustment for translation losses realized
upon sale of Sealol Industrial Seals.........oiiuiiiiennennnnn 3,115
Unrealized losses on securities arising during the period: ... (137)

Other comprehensive income ........ .ttt nnennennns
ComPrenensSive IMCOME . ¢ v it ittt ittt et e et et e et e e et aeeaeeaeeaeeaeens

Cash dividends ($.28 per share) .. ...ttt ieieenenenenenenens -—
Exercise of employee stock options and related income tax
TS o T Il -
Purchase of common stock for treasury...........oeuiiiiiiiinnnnnnnn -=
BALANCE, JANUARY 3, 1990 ...ttt ittt ittt iinennenn 3,729
Comprehensive income:
S o IS oo 1 --
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Foreign currency translation adjustments..............cocvunn (17,804)
Unrealized gains on securities:
Gains arising during the period........ ...
Reclassification adjustment. .......iiiiiiiiiinenenenenennn

Net unrealized gains. ...ttt ittt ittt ittt 35
Other comprehensive 10SS. ...ttt ittt ettt teeeeaaeanenns
Comprehensive INCOME ...ttt ittt ittt ittt ittt ettt ennnens

Cash dividends ($.28 per share) ...ttt teeneeeneneennens -=
Exercise of employee stock options and related income tax
benefits i e e e e e e --
Issuance of common stock for employee benefit plans ............... -
Purchase of common stock for treasury. .........ieiiiiiiiiininnnnns -=
BALANCE, JANUARY 2, 2000. ...ttt ittt ittt iineennenneennenn (14,040)
Comprehensive income:
S S IS oo 1T --
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Foreign currency translation adjustments ............cciouion.n. (25,484
Unrealized gains on securities:
Gains arising during the period ......... i
Reclassification adjustment ........iiiiiii it inennns

Net unrealized gains ...ttt ittt ittt ittt ineenns 482
Other comprehensive 10SS ...ttt ittt ittt teeteaeeannnns
Comprehensive INnCOmMe . ...ttt ittt ittt ittt et e e

Cash dividends ($.28 per share) ...ttt enenenenenennns -
Exercise of employee stock options and related income tax

TS oL e Il -
Issuance of common stock for employee benefit plans................ -
Purchase of common stock for treasury.. .........c.iiiiiiiiiiiiinn.n -

Mergers, acquisitions and other........ ..t -

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2000. .. .t uuseuerenenenanenananenanananannnns $ (39,042)

(155) 5,228
(102)
2,704 55,178 14,704
$ 122,908 $835,917 $37,060
COST OF
SHARES TOTAL
HELD IN STOCKHOLDERS''
TREASURY EQUITY
<C> <C>
$ (268,236) $328,388
- 102,002
-- 4,608
-- 3,115
-- (137)
- (25,408)
21,698 28,316
(41,217) (41,217)
(287,755) 399,667
- 154,316
- (17,804)
== 35
-- (25,499)
20,264 28,633
11,166 12,398
(970) (970)
(257,295) 550,776
- 90,520
- (25,484)
-- 482
- (27,533)
34,939 68,169
4,389 9,462
(10,487) (10,589)
- 72,586
$ (228,454) $728,389

</TABLE>
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.

6
I D. PERKINELMER, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE THREE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER

31, 2000
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE THREE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

<S>

Operating Activities:
S S IS Y oo 1T
Deduct net income from discontinued operations ...........iiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiaen.
Deduct net gain on disposition of discontinued operations ..........coeeiueinenn

Income from continuing OpPerations ...ttt ittt ittt ittt ettt
Adjustments to reconcile income from continuing operations
to net cash provided by continuing operations:

Revaluation of acquired InNVeNnLOTrY ..ttt ittt ittt ittt it eeeieneenennenn
In-process research and development charges ..........o.iiiiiiiiiiiiiininnennns
Noncash portion of restructuring charges ..........iiiiiiiitiintneeenennennns
Asset Impairment Charges ...ttt ittt ettt ettt ittt
Depreciation and amortization ... ..ttt ittt ittt e e e e e
Amortization of deferred debt issuance CoOsSt .. ...ttt ittt i e
Gains on dispositions and sales of investments, net .......... ..t

Changes in assets and liabilities which provided (used) cash, excluding
effects from companies purchased and divested:

Accounts recelvable ... e et e e e e
8 907 o w0 =
Accounts payable and acCrued EXPENSES . ettt i neteennnneeeeennneeeeennnes
Tax benefit of common stock options ...ttt i i i e
Accrued resStrUCLUTING COSES ittt ittt it ittt ettt ittt ittt ea et
Prepaid and deferred LaXes . ... .iiuiiitiitit ittt ettt ettt
Prepaid expenses and Other .. ...ttt ittt ittt i i i
Net Cash Provided by Continuing Operations ... ...ttt ittt teeneeneeneennnnn
Net Cash Provided by (Used In) Discontinued Operations ............ciiiiiiininnnn.
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities ......iiiiiiiiiii ittt ittt

Investing Activities:
Capital exXpPenditUres .ttt ittt it ettt et e et ettt et e et e et ettt e
Proceeds from dispositions of businesses and sales of property, plant and
[ L 3 1L o

Cost of acquisitions, net of cash and cash equivalents acquired ................
Proceeds from sales/costs of purchases of investments ................oiiiunnn..
Lo 0 T o
Net Cash Used in Continuing Operations . ...t ittt ieeneninenineeenens
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Discontinued Operations ............ciiiiiiinnn.
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities ...ttt ittt ittt

Financing Activities:
Proceeds from issuance of convertible debt ...... ..o
Increase (decrease) in commercial paper DOrrOWINgS ...ttt i eeneeneenenens
Payment of acquired Lumen revolving credit borrowings ............. ...
Other debt increases (decreases)
Proceeds from issuance of common StOCK ... ...ttt ittt ittt e
Purchases 0Of COMMON STOCK ittt ittt it et et ettt ittt ittt et
Cash dividends ...ttt ittt it it it i ettt e e e e

NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES v v it tntntneneneeeeeenenenensnneeenens
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents .....................

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents ...........ciiiiiiiiiiinnncnn
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year ... ...ttt ittt enennnnns

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR ...ttt ittt ittt ittt

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information for continuing and
discontinued operations (see also Note 2):
Cash paid during the year for:
D 0 o D o=
D Lo (LS > =
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2000 1999 1998
<C> <C> <C>

$ 90,520 $ 154,316 $ 102,002
2,400 (16,505) (23,611)
(4,453) (110,280) --
88,467 27,531 78,391
1,818 9,857 --
24,300 23,000 2,300
2,900 2,300 12,020
-- 18,000 7,400
76,380 65,842 47,862
8,567 -= --
(38,248) (21,624) (130,545)
(2,733) (49,125) 2,949
(18,381) 8,566 6,005
30,174 58,517 11,518
30,843 5,811 3,431
(31,174) (21,005) 29,569
-- (2,616) (12,359)
(27,888) (12,676) (17,700)
145,025 112,378 40,841
(5,604) 5,595 28,761
139,421 117,973 69,602
(66,213) (39,355) (43,881)
81,424 30,494 210,505
(411,040) (302,288) (217,937)
(20,457) 6,086 7,623
1,919 (1,408) (160)
(414,367) (306,471) (43,850)
12,937 162,588 (2,641)
(401,430) (143,883) (46,491)
448,000 -- --
37,000 (10,000) 104,156
-- -- (59,090)
(233,991) 69,529 7,270
46,902 28,923 28,316
(10,589) (970) (41,217)
(27,533) (25,499) (25,408)
259,789 61,983 14,027
(5,195) (2,844) 540
(7,413) 33,229 37,678
128,841 95,612 57,934
$ 121,428 $ 128,841 S 95,612
$ 45,236 S 28,438 S 12,367
21,819 82,368 59,029
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Noncash Investing and Financing Activities:
One-year secured 5% promissory notes issued to PE Corp. in connection with the
acquisition of the Analytical Instruments Division (Note 2) ................ -
</TABLE>

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.

IE. PERKINELMER, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation: The consolidated financial statements include
the accounts of PerkinElmer, Inc. (formerly EG&G, Inc.) and its subsidiaries
(the Company). All material intercompany balances and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation.

Nature of Operations: PerkinElmer, Inc. is a global high technology company
which provides products and systems to the telecom, medical, pharmaceutical,
chemical, semiconductor, photographic and other markets. The Company's operating
segments are Life Sciences, Optoelectronics, Instruments and Fluid Sciences. In
August 1999, the Company divested its Technical Services segment, which is
presented as discontinued operations in accordance with Accounting Principles
Board (APB) Opinion No. 30, Reporting the Results of Discontinued Operations
(see Note 7). In July 2001, the Company approved a plan to sell its Security and
Detection Systems business, which is also presented as discontinued operations
in accordance with the APB Opinion No. 30 (see Note 7).

Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Sales: The majority of the Company's product sales are recorded at the time
of shipment and when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, the seller's
price to the buyer is fixed or determinable and collectibility is reasonably
assured. Provision is made at the time the related revenue is recognized for the
cost of any installation obligations and the estimated cost of product
warranties. When other significant obligations remain after products are
delivered, including certain customer acceptance provisions, revenue is
recognized only after such obligations are fulfilled. If a loss is anticipated
on any contract, provision for the entire loss is made immediately. Revenue
related to the sale of maintenance contracts is deferred and amortized on a
straight-line basis over the service period. For equipment leased to a customer
under a sales-type lease, revenue recognition generally commences when the
equipment has been shipped and installed.

In the fourth quarter of 2000, retroactive to January 1, 2000, the Company
adopted Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) Staff Accounting Bulletin
("SAB") No. 101, Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements, which provides
guidance in applying generally accepted accounting principles to certain revenue
recognition issues. The adoption of SAB No. 101 did not have a material impact
on the Company's financial position or quarterly or annual results of
operations.

The former Technical Services segment had cost-reimbursement contracts with
governmental agencies. These contracts included both cost plus fixed fee
contracts and cost plus award fee contracts based on performance. Sales under
cost-reimbursement contracts were recorded as costs when incurred and included
applicable income in the proportion that costs incurred bear to total estimated
costs.

Inventories: Inventories, which include material, labor and manufacturing
overhead, are valued at the lower of cost or market. The majority of inventories
is accounted for using the first-in, first-out method of determining inventory
costs; remaining inventories are accounted for using the last-in, first-out
(LIFO) method.

Property, Plant and Equipment: For financial statement purposes, the
Company depreciates plant and equipment using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives, which generally fall within the following ranges:

buildings and special-purpose structures --10 to 25 years; leasehold
improvements -- estimated useful life or remaining term of lease, whichever is
shorter; machinery and equipment -- 3 to 7 years. Nonrecurring tooling costs are

capitalized, while recurring costs are expensed. For income tax purposes, the
Company depreciates plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives using
accelerated methods.
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Pension Plans: The Company's funding policy provides that payments to the
U.S. pension trusts shall at least be equal to the minimum funding requirements
of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974. Non-U.S. plans are
accrued for, but generally not funded, and benefits are paid from operating
funds.

Translation of Foreign Currencies: The balance sheet accounts of non-U.S.
operations, exclusive of stockholders' equity, are translated at year-end
exchange rates, and income statement accounts are translated at weighted-average
rate in effect during the year; any translation adjustments are made directly to
a component of stockholders' equity.

Intangible Assets: In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (SFAS) No. 121, Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and
for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed Of, and APB Opinion No. 17, Intangible
Assets, the Company reviews long-lived assets and all intangible assets
(including goodwill) for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate the carrying amount of such assets may not be recoverable.
Recoverability of these assets is determined by comparing the forecasted
undiscounted net cash flows of the operation to which the assets relate, to the
carrying amount including associated intangible assets of such operation. If the
operation is determined to be unable to recover the carrying amount of its
assets, then intangible assets are written down first, followed by the other
long-lived assets of the operation, to fair value. Fair value is determined
based on discounted cash flows or appraised values, depending upon the nature of
the assets. (See Note 4 for further discussion of asset impairment charges.)

Stock-Based Compensation: In accordance with SFAS No. 123, Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation, the Company accounts for stock-based compensation at
intrinsic value with disclosure of the effects of fair value accounting on net
income and earnings per share on a pro forma basis.

Cash Flows: For purposes of the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, the
Company considers all highly liquid instruments with a purchased maturity of
three months or less to be cash equivalents. The carrying amount of cash and
cash equivalents approximates fair value due to the short maturities.

Environmental Matters: The Company accrues for costs associated with the
remediation of environmental pollution when it is probable that a liability has
been incurred and the Company's proportionate share of the amount can be
reasonably estimated. Any recorded liabilities have not been discounted.

Comprehensive Income: The Company has adopted the provisions of SFAS No.
130, Reporting Comprehensive Income, which established standards for reporting
and display of comprehensive income and its components. Comprehensive income is
the total of net income and all other nonowner changes in stockholders' equity.

Segments and Related Information: The Company has adopted the provisions of
SFAS No. 131, Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related
Information. The statement established standards for the way that public
business enterprises report information and operating segments in annual
financial statements and requires reporting of selected information in interim
financial reports.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging: The Financial Accounting Standards
Board issued SFAS No. 137, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities -- Deferral of the Effective Date of SFAS No. 133, in June 1999. SFAS
No. 133 is now effective for all fiscal quarters of all fiscal years beginning
after June 15, 2000; earlier adoption is allowed. The statement requires
companies to record derivatives on the balance sheet as assets or liabilities,
measured at fair value. Gains or losses resulting from changes in the values of
those derivatives would be accounted for depending on the use of the derivative
and whether it qualifies for hedge accounting. The effect of the adoption of
SFAS No. 133 as of January 1, 2001 will not be material.

Reclassifications: Certain amounts from prior years have been reclassified
to conform to the 2000 financial statement presentation.

NOTE 2. ACQUISITIONS AND DIVESTITURES

On July 31, 2000, the Company completed its acquisition of NEN Life
Sciences, Inc. (NEN), a provider of state-of-the-art drug discovery products,
services, reagents and technologies to the life sciences industry. The Company
purchased NEN from an investor group led by Genstar Capital LLC for an aggregate
purchase price of approximately $400 million. In connection with the
acquisition, the Company paid approximately $350 million in cash and issued
warrants to purchase approximately 600,000 shares of the Company's common stock
in exchange for all of the outstanding shares, options and warrants of NEN. In
addition, the Company repaid approximately $50 million of outstanding
indebtedness of NEN. The Company financed the acquisition and repayment of the
outstanding indebtedness with $410 million of commercial paper borrowings with a
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weighted-average interest rate of 7%. These short-term borrowings were repaid in
early August with proceeds from the issuance of long-term convertible debentures
(see Note 14).

NEN's operations, included in the consolidated results of the Company from
the date of acquisition, are reported in the Life Sciences segment. The
acquisition was accounted for as a purchase under APB Opinion No. 16, Business
Combinations, and the Company allocated the purchase price of NEN based on the
fair values of the net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. The allocation
of the purchase price has not yet been finalized, however, the Company does not
expect material changes. Portions of the purchase price, including intangible
assets, were valued by independent appraisers utilizing customary valuation
procedures and techniques. These intangible assets included approximately $24.3
million for acquired in-process research and development (R&D) for projects that
had not reached technological feasibility as of the acquisition date and for
which no alternative use existed. This allocation represents the estimated fair
value based on risk-adjusted cash flows related to the in-process R&D projects;
these costs were expensed in the third quarter of 2000. Other acquired
intangible assets totaling $75.9 million included the fair value of trade names,
trademarks, patents and developed technology with lives ranging from 10 - 20
years. Goodwill
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of $270.8 million resulting from the acquisition of NEN is being amortized over
20 years. Approximately $4 million has been recorded as accrued restructuring
costs in connection with the acquisition of NEN. The restructuring plans include
initiatives to integrate the operations of the Company and NEN. The primary
components of these plans relate to employment costs, consolidation of certain
facilities, and the termination of certain leases and other contractual
obligations. Management is in the process of developing its restructuring plans
related to NEN, and accordingly, the amounts recorded are based on management's
current estimate of these costs. The Company will finalize these plans during
2001, and the majority of the restructuring actions are expected to occur during
2001.

The components of NEN's purchase price and preliminary allocation were as
follows:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
(IN THOUSANDS)
<S> <C>
Consideration and acquisition costs:
Cash paid to NEN .....iiuniiinennennnnnn. $ 348,918
Debt assumed ... iiiiietttnenneeeenenen 48,262
Acquisition CcoOsSts ...ttt 13,647
Fair value of warrants issued ........... 6,940

Preliminary allocation of purchase price:

Current assetsS . uiiiiti et $ 34,327
Property, plant and equipment .......... 59,755
Other assets ..., 739
Acquired intangibles ........... ... 75,900
In-process R&D ..ottt et 24,300
Goodwill it e e 270,790
Liabilities ..ttt ettt i it e e e e (48,044)
Total ittt $ 417,767

</TABLE>

On May 28, 1999, the Company completed its acquisition of the Analytical
Instruments Division (AI) of PE Corp. for an aggregate purchase price of
approximately $425 million, plus acquisition costs. In addition, under the terms
of the Purchase Agreement dated March 8, 1999 between the Company and PE Corp.
(the "Purchase Agreement"), the Company assumed German and other pension
liabilities of approximately $65 million. These pension liabilities were
historically funded on a pay-as-you-go basis, and the funding going-forward is
expected to remain consistent. The acquisition was accounted for as a purchase
under Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 16, Business Combinations.
In accordance with APB Opinion No. 16, the Company allocated the purchase price
of AI based on the fair values of the net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. AI produces high-quality analytical testing instruments and
consumables, and generated 1998 fiscal year sales of $569 million. AI's
operations are reported in the Company's Instruments segment. Portions of the
purchase price, including intangible assets, were valued by independent
appraisers utilizing customary valuation procedures and techniques. These
intangible assets included approximately $23 million for acquired in-process
R&D. This allocation represents the estimated fair value based on risk-adjusted
cash flows related to the in-process R&D projects. At the date of the
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acquisition of AI, the development of these projects had not yet reached
technological feasibility, and the R&D in process had no alternative future
uses. Accordingly, these costs were expensed in the second quarter of 1999.
Other acquired intangibles totaling $163.8 million included the fair value of
trade names, trademarks, patents and developed technology. These intangibles are
being amortized over their respective estimated useful lives ranging from 10-40
years. Goodwill resulting from the acquisition of AI is being amortized over 40
years. Approximately $28 million was recorded as accrued restructuring charges
in connection with the acquisition of AI. The restructuring plans include
initiatives to integrate the operations of the Company and of AI. The primary
components of these plans relate to: (a) employee termination benefits and
related costs for approximately 20% of the acquired workforce of approximately
3,000 employees; (b) consolidation or shutdown of certain operational facilities
worldwide and (c) termination of certain leases and other contractual
obligations.

During the second quarter of 2000, the Company finalized its restructuring
plan for AI. Based on continued aggressive actions by the Company to improve the
cost structure of the acquired business, and increased costs related primarily
to employment integration, the Company adjusted its original estimate of
restructuring costs recorded at the acquisition date in connection with purchase
accounting. The majority of the remaining restructuring actions are expected to
occur through fiscal 2001.

The components of the purchase price and allocation were as follows:

10

<TABLE>

<CAPTION>

(IN THOUSANDS)

<S> <C>
Consideration and acquisition costs:

Cash Paid .vvviiiie ittt i i $ 275,000
Seller NOLe ittt ittt ittt iee et eennnnn 150,000
Pension liabilities assumed ............. 65,000
Acquisition costs ...l 10,000

Preliminary allocation of purchase price:

Current assSetsS it iittet et $ 253,777
Property, plant and equipment .......... 33,308
Acquired intangibles ........... oo 163,800
In-process R&D ..ottt e iieiennnnn. 23,000
Goodwill ittt i e e 185,941
Liabilities ..ttt (159,826)
Total .iiiiiii it $ 500,000

</TABLE>

On December 16, 1998, the Company acquired substantially all of the
outstanding common stock and options of Lumen Technologies, Inc. (Lumen), a
maker of high-technology specialty light sources. The purchase price of
approximately $253 million, which included $75 million of assumed debt, was
funded with existing cash and commercial paper borrowings. The acquisition was
accounted for as a purchase under APB Opinion No. 16, and the Company allocated
the purchase price of Lumen based on the fair values of the assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. Portions of the purchase price, including intangible
assets, were valued by independent appraisers utilizing customary valuation
procedures and techniques. These intangible assets included approximately $2.3
million for acquired in-process R&D for projects that did not have future
alternative uses. This allocation represents the estimated fair value based on
risk-adjusted cash flows related to the in-process R&D projects. At the date of
the acquisition, the development of these projects had not yet reached
technological feasibility, and the R&D in process had no alternative future
uses. Accordingly, these costs were expensed in the fourth quarter of 1998.
Acquired intangibles totaling $11.8 million included the fair value of trade
names, trademarks and patents. These intangibles are being amortized over their
estimated useful life of 10 years. Goodwill resulting from the Lumen acquisition
is being amortized over 30 years. Approximately $5 million was recorded as
accrued restructuring charges in connection with the acquisition. The
restructuring plans included initiatives to integrate the operations of the
Company and Lumen. The primary components of these plans related to: (a)
transfer of certain manufacturing activities to lower-cost facilities, (b)
integration of the sales and marketing organization and (c) termination of
certain contractual obligations.

Unaudited pro forma operating results for the Company, assuming the
acquisitions of Lumen and AI occurred on December 29, 1997, and NEN occurred on
January 3, 1999, are as follows:
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<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

(IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT FOR PER SHARE DATA) 2000

<S> <C>

Sales from continuing operations . $ 1,657,211

Income from continuing operations 95,381
Basic earnings per share ......... .97
Diluted earnings per share ....... .93
Net INCOME & vt v e eeeeenenenennnn $ 97,434
Basic earnings per share ......... .99
Diluted earning per share ........ .95

</TABLE>

The pro forma amounts in the table above exclude the in-process R&D charges

of $24.3 million, $23 million and $2.3 million for NEN, AI an
respectively. The unaudited pro forma financial information i

informational purposes only and is not necessarily indicative of the Company's
operating results that would have occurred had the acquisitions been consummated

on the date for which the consummation of the acquisitions is
effect, nor is it necessarily indicative of the Company's fut

results. The pro forma amounts do not reflect any operating efficiencies and

cost savings that the Company believes are achievable.

During the first quarter of 2000, the Company sold its m
sensors and specialty semiconductor businesses for cash of $2

resulting in a pre-tax gain of $6.7 million. Combined financial results of the

divested businesses for 2000 and 1999 were not material to th

results of the Company. During the third quarter of 2000, the Company recorded

pre-tax gains totaling $1.8 million from an insurance settlem

During the fourth quarter of 2000, the Company sold its Berthold business
at a pre-tax gain of $10 million. The Company has deferred gain recognition of

approximately $11.9 million of sales proceeds from this dives

connection with certain contingencies related to the sale. Revenues for 2000 and
on, respectively.
Also during the fourth quarter of 2000, the Company recorded a pre-tax gain of

1999 for the divested business were $30 million and $38 milli

$16 million from the sale of a building.
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During the second quarter of 1999, the Company sold its

Kinematics business for cash of $15 million, resulting in a pre-tax gain of $4.3
million. Additionally, as a result of the Company's continuing evaluation of its

Instruments businesses, the Company undertook certain reposit

during the second quarter of 1999, including exiting selected product lines and
activities, rebalancing its customer mix in certain businesses and other related
activities. During the fourth quarter of 1999, the Company sold its KT Aerofab
business for cash of $4.4 million, resulting in a pre-tax gain of $0.3 million.

The net operating results of the divested businesses for 1999
significant.

In April 1998, the Company sold its Sealol Industrial Seals division for

cash of $100 million, resulting in a pre-tax gain of $58.3 mi

after-tax gain of this divestiture was $42.6 million. Sealol's 1998 sales prior
to the disposition were $23 million, and its operating income was $2.1 million.
In January 1998, the Company sold its Rotron division for $103 million in cash,
resulting in a pre-tax gain of $64.4 million. During the first quarter of 1998,
cash, resulting in
a pre-tax gain of $3.1 million. The after-tax gain of these divestitures was

the Company also sold a small product line for $4 million in

$45.2 million in 1998. During 2000 and 1999, in connection wi
dispositions of the Company's Rotron and Sealol Industrial Se

Company recognized approximately $3.7 million and $13.2 million respectively,
pre-tax gains from the previously deferred sales proceeds as a result of the

favorable resolution of certain events and contingencies.

All of the gains described above are reported on the "Ga
Dispositions” line in the consolidated income statements.

NOTE 3. RESTRUCTURING AND INTEGRATION CHARGES

The Company developed restructuring plans during 1998 to
consolidate its businesses and recorded restructuring charges

<C>
$ 1,594,834
(2,707)
(.03)
(.03)
$ 122,398
1.34
1.31

d Lumen,

s provided for

being given

ure operating

icromachined
4.3 million,

e consolidated

ent.

titure in

Structural

ioning actions

were not

llion. The

th the 1998
als divisions,

ins on

integrate and

in the first and

second quarters of 1998, which are discussed separately below.

During the first quarter of 1998, management developed a

restructure certain businesses. A discussion of the businesses affected within

each segment is presented below. The plan resulted in pre-tax

charges totaling $28.6 million. The principal actions in the restructuring plan

included close-down or consolidation of a number of offices a
transfer of assembly activities to lower-cost geographic loca
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<C>
$ 1,479,394
45,203
.50
.49
$ 68,814
.76
.75
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reductions.

Specific businesses within each segment which were affected by the
restructuring actions are as follows: the Fluid Sciences business affected
primarily manufactures mechanical components and systems; the Optoelectronics
businesses affected produce various lighting and sensor components and systems;
the Instruments restructuring related primarily to its Instruments for Research
and Applied Science business which produces particle detector equipment.

During the second quarter of 1998, the Company expanded its continuing
effort to restructure certain businesses to further improve performance. The
plan resulted in additional pre-tax restructuring charges of $19.5 million. The
principal actions in this restructuring plan included the integration of
operating divisions into five strategic business units (SBUs), close-down or
consolidation of a number of production facilities and general cost reductions.
The Technical Services segment was subsequently sold during the third quarter of
1999. The components of the restructuring charges met the criteria set forth in
Emerging Issues Task Force Issue 94-3, Liability Recognition for Certain
Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity (Including
Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring). The charges do not include
additional costs associated with the restructuring plans, such as training,
consulting, purchase of equipment and relocation of employees and equipment.
These costs were charged to operations or capitalized, as appropriate, when
incurred.

During the third quarter of 1999, due to the substantial completion of the
actions of the 1998 restructuring plans, the Company reevaluated its 1998
restructuring plans. As a result of this review, costs associated with the
previously planned shutdown of two businesses were no longer required due to
actions taken to improve performance. As a result of these developments, the
Company recognized a restructuring credit of $12 million during the third
quarter of 1999, which primarily affected the Fluid Sciences and Optoelectronics
segments.

During the second quarter of 2000, the Company recognized an additional
restructuring credit of $6 million related to its 1998 restructuring plans. This
resulted from the elimination of certain planned actions, actions taken to
improve performance at costs lower than originally estimated, and the sale of
certain businesses included in the restructuring plans.

These credits are reflected in "Restructuring Charges, Net" in the
consolidated income statements.

The restructuring charges related to continuing operations recorded in 1998
were broken down as follows by operating segment:
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<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
DISPOSAL OF
EMPLOYEE SEPARATION CERTAIN PRODUCT
(IN MILLIONS) COSTS LINES AND ASSETS
<S> <C> <C>
Life SCIeNnCEeS .ttt ittt ettt e e e $ 3.6 $ .4
OptoelectronicCs . .iii ittt ittt ittt 8.5 6.4
INSEXUMENES v ittt ittt it ittt ittt ittt e 6.1 1.5
Fluid Sciences ...ttt 6.2 1.9
Corporate and Other ......... i, 3.8 -
Total restructuring charges ................o... 28.2 10.2
Amounts incurred through January 3, 1999 ....... (7.8) (10.2)
Accrued restructuring costs at January 3, 1999 20.4 -=
Amounts incurred during 1999 ......... ... 0 .. (8.3) -
Amounts reversed during 1999 ............ ... ... (7.4) -=
Accrued restructuring costs at January 2, 2000 . 4.7 -
Amounts incurred during 2000 ...........c.iiia.. -= -=
Amounts reversed during 2000 ..........ciiiian. (4.7) -
Accrued restructuring costs at December 31, 2000 s -- $ -

</TABLE>

The acquisitions by the Company discussed in Note 2 and the Company's
divestiture during the third quarter of 1999 of its Technical Services segment
(exiting government services) were strategic milestones in the Company's
transition to a commercial high-technology company. Consistent with the
strategic direction of the Company and concurrent with the reevaluation of
existing restructuring plans during the third quarter of 1999, the Company
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developed additional plans to restructure certain businesses to continue to
improve the Company's performance.

These plans resulted in a pre-tax restructuring charge of $23.5 million
recorded in the third quarter of 1999. The principal actions in these
restructuring plans include close-down or consolidation of a number of offices
and facilities, transfer of assembly activities to lower-cost geographic
locations, disposal of underutilized assets, withdrawal from certain product
lines and general cost reductions. The restructuring plans are expected to
result in the elimination of approximately 400 positions, primarily in the
manufacturing and sales categories. The major components of the restructuring
charge were $13.6 million of employee separation costs to restructure the
worldwide organization, including the sales and manufacturing focus, $2.3
million of noncash charges to dispose of certain product lines and assets
through sale or abandonment and $7.6 million of charges to terminate lease and
other contractual obligations no longer required as a result of the
restructuring plans. The charges do not include additional costs associated with
the restructuring plans, such as training, consulting, purchase of equipment and
relocation of employees and equipment. These costs will be charged to operations
or capitalized, as appropriate, when incurred.

The restructuring actions related to the 1999 charge are broken down as
follows by business segment:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

EMPLOYEE DISPOSAL OF

SEPARATION CERTAIN PRODUCT
(IN MILLIONS) COSTS LINES AND ASSETS
<S> <C> <C>
Life SCIleNCES v ittt ittt it ettt ettt te ettt eaaneenn $ 0.5 $ 0.8
OptoeleCctronicCs ittt ittt e e 6.1 0.8
INSEXUMENES t vttt ittt ittt it it ettt i e 1.8 -
Fluid SCiences ...ttt ittt it 5.2 .2
Corporate and Other ........ . ... - 5
Total restructuring charges ............cociu.n. 13.6 2.3
Amounts incurred through January 2, 2000 ....... (2.1) (.2)
Accrued restructuring costs at January 2, 2000 $11.5 $ 2.1
Provisions during 2000 ........c.iiiiiiinnnnn. 2.4 -=
Amounts incurred during 2000 ..........ciiiiian. (7.4) (.2)
Amounts reversed during 2000 ...........c0i... (4.0) -
Accrued restructuring costs at December 31, 2000 $ 2.5 $ 1.9

</TABLE>

Further details of the Company's restructuring actions are presented below.
Specific businesses within each segment which were affected by the restructuring
actions are as follows: the primary Fluid Sciences business affected
manufactures certain products for the aerospace markets; the Optoelectronics
businesses affected produce various lighting and sensor components and systems;
the Instruments restructuring relates to its analytical instruments business and
its Instruments for Research and Applied Science business which produces
particle detector equipment.

Close-down of certain facilities: Costs have been accrued for the closing
down of certain facilities. These costs relate primarily to the Instruments and
Optoelectronics segments.
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Transfer of assembly activities: The Company continues to relocate certain
activities, primarily in its Optoelectronics segment, to lower-cost geographic
areas, such as the Philippines, Indonesia and China. The costs included in the
restructuring charges related to costs associated with exiting the previous
operations. Actual costs to physically relocate are charged to operations as
incurred.

Disposal of underutilized assets: The Company plans to dispose of
underutilized assets either through sale or abandonment, primarily in its
Instruments and Optoelectronics segments.

Withdrawal from certain product lines: The Company has made a strategic
decision to discontinue certain unprofitable product lines, primarily in its
Optoelectronics segment.

Most of the actions remaining at December 31, 2000 are expected to occur in
fiscal 2001.
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During the fourth quarter of 2000, the Company reevaluated its 1999
restructuring plan due to the substantial completion of the respective actions
and the continuing transformation of the portfolio of businesses during 2000.
This resulted in the reversal of $4.9 million of remaining reserves from the
1999 plan and the recording of a pre-tax restructuring charge of $15.1 million
for actions to be completed in 2001 (the "2000 plan"). These charges related to
the Company's Life Sciences and Optoelectronics segments. The principal actions
in the restructuring plans included close-down or consolidation of a number of
offices and facilities, transfer of assembly activities to lower cost geographic
locations, disposal of underutilized assets and general cost reductions. The
restructuring charges were broken down as follows by operating segment: The Life
Sciences' principal actions are associated with rationalization of its
distribution network and overall facility consolidation. The Optoelectronics’'
principal actions are associated with its Lighting and Imaging businesses and
relate to the shift of certain manufacturing to low cost geographic areas,
facility consolidation and general cost reductions.

The following table summarizes activity related to the 2000 plan:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
TERMINATION
OF LEASES
EMPLOYEE DISPOSAL OF AND OTHER
SEPARATION CERTAIN PRODUCT CONTRACTUAL
(IN MILLIONS) COSTS LINES AND ASSETS OBLIGATIONS
<S> <C> <C> <C>
Life Sclences ...ttt ittt $ 2.9 $ .1 $ 2.1
Optoelectronics ...t ittt 7.2 2.8 -=
Total restructuring charges .............ccoo... 10.1 2.9 2.1
Amounts incurred during 2000 ................... - - -=
Accrued restructuring costs at December 31, 2000 $10.1 $ 2.9 $ 2.1

</TABLE>

During the second quarter of 2000, the Company finalized its restructuring
plan for AI. Based on continued aggressive actions by the Company to improve the
cost structure of the acquired business, and increased costs related primarily
to employment integration, the Company adjusted its original estimate of
restructuring costs recorded at the acquisition date in connection with purchase
accounting. The majority of the remaining restructuring actions are expected to
occur through fiscal 2001.

The following table summarizes reserve activity through December 31, 2000
related to the May 1999 AI acquisition as discussed in Note 2:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
(IN MILLIONS)

<S> <C>
Accrued restructuring costs at beginning of period $12.4
Provisions, through purchase accounting, net ...... 24.0
Charges/Writeoffs ..ttt ittt e e e (7.7)
Accrued restructuring costs ......iiiiiiiiiiiiii $28.7
</TABLE>

The following table summarizes reserve activity through December 31, 2000
related to the December 1998 Lumen acquisition and July 2000 NEN acquisition as
discussed in Note 2 (all Lumen actions were completed during 2000) :

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
(IN MILLIONS)

<S> <C>
Accrued restructuring costs at beginning of period (Lumen) . $1.7
Provisions, through purchase accounting, net ............... 4.0
Charges/Writeoffs ittt e ittt e e (2.1)
Accrued restructuring COStS .. iii ittt ittt ittt ieeneenenn $3.6
</TABLE>

Cash outlays during 2000 were approximately $33 million for all of these
plans. The Company expects to incur approximately $30 to $35 million of cash
outlays in connection with these plans throughout fiscal 2001. The majority of
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the actions remaining are expected to occur during 2001.
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NOTE 4. ASSET IMPAIRMENT CHARGES

During the third quarter of 1999, in connection with its ongoing review of
its portfolio of businesses, the Company conducted a strategic review of certain
units within its business segments. The strategic review triggered an impairment
review of long-lived assets of certain business units that were expected to be
disposed. The Company calculated the present value of expected cash flows of
certain business units to determine the fair value of those assets. Accordingly,
in the third quarter of 1999, the Company recorded noncash impairment charges
and wrote down goodwill by $15 million in the Instruments segment and $3 million
in the Optoelectronics segment. Sales and operating profit for the businesses
under strategic review were approximately $54 million and $2 million,
respectively, in 1999. During 2000, the Company disposed of its Berthold
business which represented $30 million of the $54 million of sales.

During the second quarter of 1998, the Company recorded a $7.4 million
noncash impairment charge related to an automotive testing facility in the
Instruments segment. The impairment charge applied to fixed assets and resulted
from projected changes in the principal customer's demand for services. The
Company calculated the present value of expected cash flows of the testing
facility to determine the fair value of the assets.

NOTE 5. OTHER EXPENSE

Other income (expense), net, consisted of the following:

<TABLE>

<CAPTION>

(IN THOUSANDS) 2000 1999

<S> <C> <C>

TNtETeST TNCOME vttt ittt e et ettt te e e et eeeeeeneseeeeeenenenn S 3,874 $ 3,083

Interest EXPENSE ittt ittt ittt ittt ettt eeneeneens (39,305) (27,726)

Gains on sales of investments, Net ......iiiiiiiitennneeeennnnn 1,294 1,952

[0 o Y (5,378) 7,452
$(39,515) $(15,239)

</TABLE>

Other consists mainly of foreign exchange losses, and $2.2 million of
income received by the Company in 1999 related to the demutualization of a life
insurance company in which the Company is a policyholder. The increase in
interest expense in 2000 versus 1999 is due to the impact of higher debt levels
resulting from acquisitions.

NOTE 6. INCOME TAXES

The components of income from continuing operations before income taxes for
financial reporting purposes were as follows:

<TABLE>

<CAPTION>

(IN THOUSANDS) 2000 1999 1998

<S> <C> <C> <C>

U.S. ...... $ 34,945 $ 1,055 $ 25,022

Non-U.S ... 110,118 44,347 88,938
$145,063 S 45,402 $113,960

</TABLE>

The components of the provision for income taxes for continuing operations
were as follows:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
DEFERRED

(IN THOUSANDS) CURRENT (PREPAID) TOTAL
<S> <C> <C> <C>
2000
Federal $ 12,432 $ 13,761 $26,193
State 3,422 2,968 6,390
Non-U.S 25,330 (1,317) 24,013

$ 41,184 $ 15,412 $56,596
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1999

Federal $ 10,002

State 961

Non-U.S 13,234
$ 24,197

</TABLE>
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<TABLE>

<S> <C>

1998

Federal $ 29,678

State 3,645

Non-U.S 15,234
$ 48,557

</TABLE>

S (4,945) $ 5,057
(567) 394
(814) 12,420

S (6,326) $17,871

<C> <C>

S (7,978) $21,700

(1,031) 2,614
(3,979) 11,255
$(12,988) $35,569

The total provision for income taxes included in the consolidated financial

statements was as follows:

<TABLE>

<CAPTION>

(IN THOUSANDS) 2000 1999 1998

<S> <C> <C> <C>

Continuing Operations $56,596 $17,871 $35,569

Discontinued Operations 4,673 79,150 18,463
$61,269 $97,021 $54,032

</TABLE>

The major differences between the Company's effective tax rate for
continuing operations and the federal statutory rate were as follows:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

<S>

Federal statutory rate ...............
Non-U.S. rate differential, net ......
Future remittance of non-U.S. earnings
State income taxes, net ..............
Goodwill amortization ................
Goodwill write-downs .................
In-process R&D ... ..ttt
Change in valuation allowance ........
Other, net ......iiiiiiiiiiinneeieennn

Effective tax rate .......... .. ..

</TABLE>

2000 1999
<C> <C>
35.0% 35.0%
(12.4) (18.0)
2.9 1.4
8.2 7.6
-- 11.7
7.9 -=
(1.7) 9.0
(.9) (7.3)
39.0% 39.4%

The 2000 tax provision and effective rate for continuing operations
includes tax for nonrecurring items such as the disposals of Berthold, IC
Sensors and Judson. The 1999 tax provision and effective rate for continuing
operations was impacted by a non-deductible goodwill write-down.

The tax effects of temporary differences and carryovers that gave rise to
deferred income tax assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2000 and January

2, 2000 were as follows:

<TABLE>

<CAPTION>

(IN THOUSANDS)

<S>

Deferred tax assets:

Inventory reserves .............
Other reserves .............0...
Deferred income ................
Vacation pay «..oveveiininnenens
Net operating loss carryforwards
Post-retirement health benefits
Restructuring reserve ..........
In-process R&D ...

2000 1999
<C> <C>
$ 1,866 $ 6,007
21,811 15,729
6,179 6,024
5,483 5,409
14,447 28,562
4,981 4,072
16,005 15,567
10,726 8,970
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All other, net ................. 46,772 49,680

Total deferred tax assets ....... 128,270 140,020

Deferred tax liabilities:

Pension contribution ........... (13,850) (12,620)
Amortization ..........iiiiiia.. (6,470) (441)
Depreciation ..........oviinn. (39,068) (18,321)
All other, net .........iieeo.n.. (17,425) (20,722)
Total deferred tax liabilities .. (76,813) (52,104)
Valuation allowance ............. (14,447) (28,580)
Net prepaid taxes ............o... $ 37,010 S 59,336
</TABLE>
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At December 31, 2000, the Company had non-U.S. (primarily from Germany) net
operating loss carryovers of $53.4 million, substantially all of which carry
forward indefinitely. The valuation allowance results primarily from these
carryovers, for which the Company currently believes it is more likely than not
that they will not be realized.

Current deferred tax assets of $51 million and $92 million were included in
other current assets at December 31, 2000 and January 2, 2000, respectively.
Long-term deferred tax liabilities of $16 million and $33 million were included
in long-term liabilities at December 31, 2000 and January 2, 2000, respectively.

In general, it is the practice and intention of the Company to reinvest the
earnings of its non-U.S. subsidiaries in those operations. Repatriation of
retained earnings is done only when it is advantageous. Applicable federal taxes
are provided only on amounts planned to be remitted. In connection with 1998
divestitures, certain proceeds will not be permanently reinvested in those
operations, and, accordingly, federal taxes in the amount of $10 million were
provided in connection with those earnings.

NOTE 7. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On August 20, 1999, the Company sold the assets of its Technical Services
segment, including the outstanding capital stock of EG&G Defense Materials,
Inc., a subsidiary of the Company, to EG&G Technical Services, Inc., an
affiliate of The Carlyle Group L.P. (the "Buyer"), for approximately $250
million in cash and the assumption by the Buyer of certain liabilities of the
Technical Services segment. Approximately $2.1 million of the cash purchase
price will be paid by the Buyer to the Company on the seventh anniversary of the
closing of this transaction. The Company recorded an additional pre-tax gain of
$7.3 million on the disposition of discontinued operations as a result of a
post-closing selling price settlement in the second quarter of 2000.

The results of operations of the Technical Services segment were previously
reported as one of five business segments of the Company. The Company accounted
for the sale of its Technical Services segment as a discontinued operation in
accordance with APB Opinion No. 30 and, accordingly, the results of operations
of the Technical Services segment have been segregated from continuing
operations and reported as a separate line item on the Company's Consolidated
Income Statements. The Company recorded a pre-tax gain on disposition of
discontinued operations of $181 million, net of transaction and related costs,
during 1999. The $110 million after-tax gain was reported separately from the
results of the Company's continuing operations.

The Company's former Department of Energy (DOE) segment is also presented as
discontinued operations in accordance with APB Opinion No. 30. The Company's
last DOE management and operations contract expired in 1997. The Company is in
the process of negotiating contract closeouts and does not anticipate incurring
any material loss in excess of previously established reserves.

In July 2001, the Company approved a plan to sell its Security and Detection
Systems business. The results of operations of the Security and Detection
Systems business were previously reported as part of the Instruments segment.
The Company has accounted for the plan to sell its Security and Detection
Systems business as a discontinued operation in accordance with APB Opinion No.
30, and accordingly, the results of operations of the Security and Detection
Systems business have been segregated from continuing operations and reported as
a separate line on the Company's Consolidated Income Statements.

Summary operating results of the discontinued operations for both Technical
Services and Security and Detection Systems (through December 31, 2000) were as
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follows:

<TABLE>

<CAPTION>

(In thousands) 2000 1999
<S> <C> <C>

Sl ittt e e e e e e e e e $ 107,900 $ 389,759
Costs and EXPENSES .. v ittt eeeeeeneenennnnn 105,903 359,214
Operating income from discontinued operations . 1,997 30,545
Other exXpense ... ...ttt teeeeneennnn (2,571) (5,396)

Income (loss) from discontinued operations

before income taxes ........ciiiiiiininnenn (574) 25,149
Provision for income taxes ...........c.iciinn. 1,826 8,644
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net

of income taXes ......iiiiiiiii i i S (2,400) $ 16,505

</TABLE>

NOTE 8. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share was computed by dividing net income by the
weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the year. Diluted
earnings per share was computed by dividing net income by the weighted-average
number of common shares outstanding plus all
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potentially dilutive common shares outstanding, primarily shares issuable upon
the exercise of stock options using the treasury stock method. The following
table reconciles the number of shares utilized in the earnings per share
calculations:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
(In thousands) 2000 1999 1998
<S> <C> <C> <C>
Number of common shares -- basic . 98,212 91,044 90, 644
Effect of dilutive securities
Stock options ....... ... ... 4,022 2,030 1,032
Other ..., 44 64 92
Number of common shares -- diluted 102,278 93,138
</TABLE>

Options to purchase 54,400 and 184,000 shares of common stock were not
included in the computation of diluted earnings per share for 2000 and 1998,
respectively, because the options' exercise prices were greater than the average
market price of the common shares and thus their effect would have been
antidilutive. Additionally, the Company's zero coupon senior convertible
debentures (See Note 14) are currently convertible into 10.8 million shares of
the Company's common stock at approximately $42.50 per share. Conversion of the
debentures was not assumed in the computation of diluted earnings per share
because the effect of assumed conversion would have been antidilutive.

NOTE 9. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable were net of reserves for doubtful accounts of $14.5
million and $12.5 million as of December 31, 2000 and January 2, 2000,
respectively. The increase 1s primarily due to the higher revenues in 2000
versus 1999 and the inclusion of NEN in 2000.

NOTE 10. INVENTORIES

Inventories as of December 31, 2000 and January 2, 2000, consisted of the
following:

<TABLE>

<CAPTION>

(IN THOUSANDS) 2000 1999
<S> <C> <C>
Finished goods ...... $ 84,184 $ 86,123
Work in progress .... 50,500 24,419

Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

<C>
$ 630,214
587,647

42,074


http://www.secdatabase.com

Raw materials ....... 74,359 84,302

$209,043 $194,844

</TABLE>

The increase in inventories was primarily due to the acquisition of NEN in
2000.

NOTE 11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment, at cost, as of December 31, 2000 and January
2, 2000 consisted of the following:

<TABLE>

<CAPTION>

(IN THOUSANDS) 2000 1999

<S> <C> <C>

Land oot ettt e $ 26,058 $ 26,155

Building and leasehold improvements 143,314 122,947

Machinery and equipment ........... 376,590 337,087
$545, 962 $486,189

</TABLE>

Increases in property, plant and equipment due to the acquisition of NEN
and capital expenditures during 2000 were partially offset by decreases
resulting from dispositions and the effect of translating fixed assets
denominated in non-U.S. currencies at current exchange rates.

NOTE 12. INVESTMENTS

Investments as of December 31, 2000 and January 2, 2000 consisted of the
following:
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<TABLE>

<CAPTION>

(IN THOUSANDS) 2000 1999

<S> <C> <C>

Marketable investments ............ $21,936 $11,082

Joint venture and other investments 14,290 3,115
$36,226 $14,197

</TABLE>

The primary components of the increase in investments in 2000 versus 1999
are certain strategic alliances and equity investments made through the
Company's Life Sciences and Optoelectronics segments.

Joint venture investments are accounted for using the equity method.
Marketable investments consisted of trust assets which were carried at market
value and were primarily invested in common stocks and fixed-income securities
to meet the supplemental executive retirement plan obligation, as well as an $8
million equity investment in Genomic Solutions made in 2000. The market values
were based on quoted market prices. As of December 31, 2000 the fixed-income
securities, on average, had maturities of approximately 15 years.

The net unrealized holding gain on marketable investments, net of deferred
income taxes, reported as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income
(loss) in stockholders' equity, was $0.9 million and $0.4 million at December
31, 2000 and January 2, 2000, respectively. During 2000, the Company completed a
strategic alliance with and made an initial $5 million investment in Bragg
Photonics, a maker of key fiber optic components. The Company's initial 13%
investment in Bragg Photonics was increased to 26% during the year for a total
investment at December 31, 2000 of $10 million.

Marketable investments classified as available for sale as of December 31,
2000 and January 2, 2000 consisted of the following:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
MARKET GROSS UNREALIZED HOLDING
(IN THOUSANDS) VALUE COoSsT GAINS (LOSSES)
<S> <C> <C> <C> <C>
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2000

Common stocks.......... $17,356 $16,021 S 1,689 $ (354
Fixed-income security.. 4,143 4,074 69 -
Other...........ovoue. 437 492 - (55)
$21,936 $20,587 $ 1,758 $(409
1999
Common stockS.......... $ 7,046 $ 6,345 S 721 S
Fixed-income security 3,360 3,449 -= 89
Other....... .o 676 652 24
$11,082 $10, 446 S 745 $(109
</TABLE>

NOTE 13. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets consist mainly of goodwill from acquisitions accounted
for using the purchase method of accounting, representing the excess of cost
over the fair market value of the net assets of the acquired businesses.
Goodwill is being amortized over periods of 10-40 years. Goodwill, net of
accumulated amortization, was $660 million and $417 million at December 31, 2000
and January 2, 2000, respectively. Other identifiable intangible assets from
acquisitions include patents, trademarks, trade names and developed technology
and are being amortized over periods of 10-40 years. Other identifiable
intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization, were $258 million and $175
million at December 31, 2000 and January 2, 2000, respectively. Intangible
assets as of December 31, 2000 and January 2, 2000 consisted of the following:

<TABLE>

<CAPTION>

(IN THOUSANDS) 2000 1999

<S> <C> <C>

GoOdWIll it e e e e S 714,949 $ 476,326

Other identifiable intangible assets 297,900 182,550

1,012,849 658,876

Accumulated amortization ........... (94,784) (66,926)
S 918,065 $ 591,950

</TABLE>

The increase in intangible assets resulted primarily from the NEN
acquisition.
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NOTE 14. DEBT

Short-term debt at December 31, 2000 was $186 million and was comprised
primarily of commercial paper borrowings. The weighted average interest rate on
the commercial paper borrowings, which had maturities of 60 days or less, was
6.7%.

Short-term debt at January 2, 2000 was $382 million and included one-year
promissory notes of $150 million issued to PE Corp. at an interest rate of 5%,
money market loans of $85 million and commercial paper borrowings of $140
million.

In March 2001, the Company's $300 million revolving credit facility was
refinanced and will expire in March 2002 and the Company also refinanced an
additional $100 million revolving credit facility which expires in March 2006.
These agreements, which serve as backup facilities for the commercial paper
borrowings, have no significant commitment fees. There were no amounts
outstanding under these lines at January 2, 2000 or December 31, 2000.

At December 31, 2000 and January 2, 2000, long-term debt was $583.3 million
and $114.9 million, respectively, and included $115 million of unsecured
ten-year notes issued in October 1995 at an interest rate of 6.8%, which mature
in 2005 as well as $460 million of zero coupon senior convertible debentures
described below. The carrying amount of the unsecured ten-year notes
approximated the estimated fair value at December 31, 2000, based on a quoted
market price. The estimated fair value of the convertible debentures
approximated $558 million at December 31, 2000, also based on a quoted market
price.

In August 2000, the Company sold zero coupon senior convertible debentures
with an aggregate purchase price of $460 million. The Company used the
offering's net proceeds of approximately $448 million to repay a portion of its
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commercial paper borrowings, which had been increased temporarily to finance the
NEN acquisition. Deferred issuance costs of $12 million were recorded as a
noncurrent asset and are being amortized over three years. The debentures, which
were offered by a prospectus supplement pursuant to the Company's effective
shelf registration statement, are due August 2020, and were priced with a yield
to maturity of 3.5%. At maturity, the Company will repay $921 million, comprised
of $460 million of original purchase price plus accrued original issue discount.
The Company may redeem some or all of the debentures at any time on or after
August 7, 2003 at a redemption price equal to the issue price plus accrued
original issue discount through the redemption date. Holders of the debentures
may require the Company to repurchase some or all of the debentures in August
2003 and August 2010, or at any time when there is a change in control of the
Company, as 1is customary and ordinary for debentures of this nature, at a
repurchase price equal to the initial price to the public plus accrued original
issue discount through the date of the repurchase. The debentures are currently
convertible into 10.8 million shares of the Company's common stock at
approximately $42.50 per share.

In connection with the completion of the NEN acquisition on July 31, 2000,
the Company paid approximately $350 million in cash as a part of the purchase
price. In addition, the Company repaid approximately $50 million of outstanding
indebtedness of NEN. The Company financed the acquisition and repayment of the
outstanding indebtedness with $410 million of commercial paper borrowings with a
weighted-average interest rate of 7%. These short-term borrowings were repaid in
early August with proceeds from the issuance of long-term convertible
debentures, as discussed above.

NOTE 15. ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accrued expenses as of December 31, 2000 and January 2, 2000 consisted of
the following:

<TABLE>

<CAPTION>

(IN THOUSANDS) 2000 1999

<S> <C> <C>

Payroll and incentives ................. $ 39,946 $ 30,661

Employee benefits .........ciiiiiiiin. 48,101 49,179

Federal, non-U.S. and state income taxes 39,140 46,083

Other accrued operating expenses ....... 187,839 147,734
$315,026 $273,657

</TABLE>

The increase is due primarily to the inclusion of NEN, which was acquired
in 2000.

NOTE 16. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

The following employee benefit plan disclosures include amounts and
information, on a combined basis, for both the continuing and discontinued
operations of the Company.

Savings Plan: The Company has a savings plan for the benefit of qualified
U.S. employees. Under this plan, the Company contributes an amount equal to the
lesser of 55% of the amount of the employee's voluntary contribution or 3.3% of
the employee's annual compensation. Savings plan expense charged to continuing
operations was $5.4 million in 2000, $3.9 million in 1999, and $2.7 million in
1998.

20

Pension Plans: The Company has defined benefit pension plans covering
substantially all U.S. employees and non-U.S. pension plans for non-U.S.
employees. The plans provide benefits that are based on an employee's years of
service and compensation near retirement. Assets of the U.S. plan are comprised
primarily of equity and debt securities.

Net periodic pension cost included the following components:

<TABLE>

<CAPTION>

(IN THOUSANDS) 2000 1999 1998
<S> <C> <C> <C>
Service COSt tiiiiiiiiiiea., S 6,063 $ 8,539 $ 9,365
Interest cost .......iiiin 16,974 19,528 18,300
Expected return on plan assets (17,998) (23,130) (23,360)
Net amortization and deferral (487) (645) (825)
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</TABLE>

The following table sets forth the changes in the funded status of the
principal U.S. pension plan and the principal non-U.S. pension plans and the
amounts recognized in the Company's consolidated balance sheets as of December
31, 2000 and January 2, 2000.

$ 259,468

7,011
15,656

(11,802)
1,859

20,316
(13,798)

(107,604)

310,024

65,040
(12,679)
(107, 850)

(83,429)
1,024

(54)
48,078

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
2000

(IN THOUSANDS) NON-U.S. U.S. NON-U.S.
<S> <C> <C> <C>
Actuarial present value of benefit obligations:
Accumulated benefit obligations .................. $ 63,518 $ 157,587 $ 84,110
Projected benefit obligations at beginning of year $ 91,888 $ 171,106 $ 32,571
AI projected benefit obligations at date of

acquisition ... e - - 67,780
S VICE COSE ittt ittt it ittt ettt et e 1,439 4,624 1,528
INnterest COSE v ittt ittt ittt ettt 4,778 12,196 3,872
Benefits paid ...ttt e (3,398) (9,677) (2,345)
Actuarial loss (gain) ...ttt (4,168) (3,898) (4,489)
Effect of exchange rate changes .................. (6,251) - (7,029)
DisSpPOSItions vttt e e e e e (17,584) - -—
Settlement loss - discontinued operations ........ -= -= -=
Curtailment gain - discontinued operations ....... -- -- --
Reduction of projected benefit obligations -

discontinued operations .......... .. ... - - -
Projected benefit obligations at end of year ..... 66,704 174,351 91,888
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year ... - 254,535 -
Actual return on plan assetsS ....eiieiiiininann - (14,038) -—
Benefits paid and plan expenses .................. - (9,678) -
Transfer out - discontinued operations ........... —— (472) —
Fair value of plan assets at end of year ......... -= 230,347 -=
Plan assets less (greater) than projected benefit

obligations ...ttt e e e 66,704 (55,996) 91,888
Unrecognized net transition asset ................ -- 512 -
Unrecognized prior service costs ............c..... (732) (52) (918)
Unrecognized net gain ........couiiiiiiiiniinnnnnn. 3,252 19,469 2,385
Accrued pension liability (asset) ......c.oivunieen.. S 69,224 $ (36,067) $ 93,355
Actuarial assumptions as of the year-end

measurement date:

Discount rate ......iiiiiiiii it i 6.0% 7.5% 5.8%

Rate of compensation increase ................ 3.3% 4.5% 3.5%

Expected rate of return on assets ............ -= 9.0% -=
</TABLE>

Non-U.S. accrued pension liabilities classified as long-term liabilities
totaled $86 million and $122 million as of December 31, 2000 and January 2,
2000, respectively. The U.S. pension asset was classified as other noncurrent
assets.

The Company also sponsors a supplemental executive retirement plan to
provide senior management with benefits in excess of normal pension benefits. At
December 31, 2000 and January 2, 2000, the projected benefit obligations were
$16.4 million and $14.9 million,
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respectively. Assets with a fair value of $9.2 million and $9.8 million
segregated in a trust, were available to meet this obligation as of December 31,
2000 and January 2, 2000, respectively. Pension expense for this plan was
approximately $2.0 million in 2000, $1.8 million in 1999 and $1.4 million in
1998.

Postretirement Medical Plans: The Company provides health care benefits for
eligible retired U.S. employees under a comprehensive major medical plan or
under health maintenance organizations where available. The majority of the
Company's U.S. employees become eligible for retiree health benefits if they
retire directly from the Company and have at least ten years of service.
Generally, the major medical plan pays stated percentages of covered expenses
after a deductible is met and takes into consideration payments by other group
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coverages and by Medicare. The plan requires retiree contributions under most

circumstances and has provisions for cost-sharing changes. For employees

retiring after 1991, the Company has capped its medical premium contribution
based on employees' years of service. The Company funds the amount allowable
under a 401 (h) provision in the Company's defined benefit pension plan. Assets

of the plan are comprised primarily of equity and debt securities.

Net periodic postretirement medical benefit cost (credit) included the

following components:

<TABLE>

<CAPTION>

(IN THOUSANDS) 2000 1999

<S> <C> <C>

Service cost ..., $ 232 S 289

Interest cost ......cciiii.... 992 1,036

Expected return on plan assets (1,219) (1,304)

Net amortization and deferral (1,516) (1,022)
$(1,511) $(1,001)

</TABLE>

The following table sets forth the changes in the postretirement medical
plan's funded status and the amounts recognized in the Company's consolidated

balance sheets at December 31, 2000 and January 2, 2000:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
(IN THOUSANDS) 2000
<S> <C>
Actuarial present value of benefit obligations:

2T o =1 = $ 10,379

Active employees eligible to retire ........... ... ... 371

Other active employees . ...ttt enennns 2,117
Accumulated benefit obligations at beginning of year ..... 12,867
SErVICE COSE vttt it i i i i i e e e 232
Interest COSt vttt ittt i i i ittt e e e 992
Benefits paid ittt ittt e e e e e e, (1,196)
Actuarial 10SS (galn) .« ittt ittt ittt ettt 430
Plan adjustments ...ttt ittt ittt it i 530
Settlement loss - discontinued operations ................ -=
Curtailment gain - discontinued operations ............... -=
Reduction of projected benefit obligations -

discontinued operations ........iiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiaean -=
Change in accumulated benefit obligations during the year 988

L3S o et =Y = Y 10,651

Active employees eligible to retire ........... ... ... 400

Other active empPloyees ...t ii ittt enenninenennns 2,804
Accumulated benefit obligations at end of year ........... 13,855
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year ........... 14,474
Actual return on plan assetsS ...ttt ittt i (590)
Benefits paid and plan €XPEenSEesS ...ttt ennenenenennens (1,630)
Transfer out - discontinued operations ................... -=
Fair value of plan assets at end of year ................. 12,254
Fair value of plan assets less (greater) than accumulated

benefit obligations .......c.iiiiiiii ittt 1,601
Unrecognized prior service costs .....ieiiiiiiiiinininnnns (489)
Unrecognized net gain .......iiiiiiiiiin ittt inneenenns 4,614
Accrued post-retirement medical liability ................ S 5,726

Actuarial assumptions as of the year-end measurement date:

Discount rate ...ttt ittt it i e e 7.5%

Expected rate of return on assets ...........ciiiiii 9.0%

Health care cost trend rate:
FirsSt Year it ittt ittt ittt e e e 8.0%
Ultimate ..o e e e e 5.5%
Time to reach ultimate ......... ... ... 3 years

</TABLE>
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The accrued postretirement medical liability included $4.7 million and $6.6
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million classified as long-term liabilities as of December 31, 2000 and January
2, 2000, respectively.

If the health care cost trend rate was increased 1%, the accumulated
postretirement benefit obligations would have increased by approximately $0.6
million at December 31, 2000. The effect of this increase on the annual cost for
2000 would have been approximately $42,000. If the health care cost trend rate
was decreased 1%, the accumulated postretirement benefit obligations would have
decreased by approximately $0.5 million at December 31, 2000. The effect of this
decrease on the annual cost for 2000 would have been approximately $37,000.

Deferred Compensation Plans: During 1998, the Company implemented certain
nonqualified deferred compensation programs that provide benefits payable to
officers and certain key employees or their designated beneficiaries at
specified future dates, upon retirement or death. Benefit payments under these
plans are funded by a combination of contributions from participants and the
Company.

Other: In April 1999, the Company's stockholders approved the 1999
Incentive Plan, under which cash performance awards as well as an aggregate of
3.5 million shares of the Company's common stock were made available for option
grants, restricted stock awards, performance units and other stock-based awards.

NOTE 17. REIMBURSEMENT OF INVESTED CAPITAL

In 1997, the Company received a $30.4 million payment as part of the
negotiation of a joint development contract. This payment represented a $27
million reimbursement of previously invested capital, which will be amortized to
income over the estimated life of the related assets, and a $3.4 million
reimpursement of cost of capital, which was included in other income. The
reimbursement, net of accumulated amortization, included in long-term
liabilities was $11 million as of December 31, 2000 and $15.3 million as of
January 2, 2000.

NOTE 18. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company is subject to various claims, legal proceedings and
investigations covering a wide range of matters that arise in the ordinary
course of its business activities. Each of these matters is subject to various
uncertainties, and it is possible that some of these matters may be resolved
unfavorably to the Company. The Company has established accruals for matters
that are probable and reasonably estimable. Management believes that any
liability that may ultimately result from the resolution of these matters in
excess of amounts provided will not have a material adverse effect on the
financial position or results of operations of the Company.

In addition, the Company is conducting a number of environmental
investigations and remedial actions at current and former Company locations and,
along with other companies, has been named a potentially responsible party (PRP)
for certain waste disposal sites. The Company accrues for environmental issues
in the accounting period that the Company's responsibility is established and
when the cost can be reasonably estimated. The Company has accrued $8.8 million
as of December 31, 2000, representing management's estimate of the total cost of
ultimate disposition of known environmental matters. Such amount is not
discounted and does not reflect any recovery of any amounts through insurance or
indemnification arrangements. These cost estimates are subject to a number of
variables, including the stage of the environmental investigations, the
magnitude of the possible contamination, the nature of the potential remedies,
possible joint and several liability, the timeframe over which remediation may
occur and the possible effects of changing laws and regulations. For sites where
the Company has been named a PRP, management does not currently anticipate any
additional liability to result from the inability of other significant named
parties to contribute. The Company expects that such accrued amounts could be
paid out over a period of up to five years. As assessments and remediation
activities progress at each individual site, these liabilities are reviewed and
adjusted to reflect additional information as it becomes available. There have
been no environmental problems to date that have had or are expected to have a
material effect on the Company's financial position or results of operations.
While it is reasonably possible that a material loss exceeding the amounts
recorded may have been incurred, the preliminary stages of the investigations
make it impossible for the Company to reasonably estimate the range of potential
exposure.
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The Company has received notices from the Internal Revenue Service (IRS)
asserting deficiencies in federal corporate income taxes for the Company's 1985
to 1994 tax years. The total additional tax proposed by the IRS amounts to $74
million plus interest. The Company has filed petitions in the United States Tax
Court to challenge most of the deficiencies asserted by the IRS. The Company
believes that it has meritorious legal defenses to those deficiencies and
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believes that the ultimate outcome of the case will not result in a material
impact on the Company's consolidated results of operations or financial
position.

NOTE 19. RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

For information concerning various investigations, claims, legal
proceedings, environmental investigations and remedial actions, and notices from
the IRS, see Note 18. For information concerning factors affecting future
performance, see Management's Discussion and Analysis.

Costs incurred under cost-reimbursable government contracts, primarily in
the former Technical Services segment, which is presented as discontinued
operations, are subject to audit by the government. The results of prior audits,
completed through 1996, have not had a material effect on the Company.

The Company's management and operations contracts with the DOE are
presented as discontinued operations. The Company's last DOE management and
operations contract expired on September 30, 1997. The Company is in the process
of negotiating contract closeouts and does not anticipate incurring any material
loss in excess of previously established reserves.

NOTE 20. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Stock-Based Compensation: Under the 1999 Incentive Plan, 3.5 million
additional shares of the Company's common stock were made available for option
grants, restricted stock awards, performance units and other stock-based awards.
At December 31, 2000, 1.9 million shares of the Company's common stock were
reserved for employee benefit plans.

The Company has nonqualified and incentive stock option plans for officers
and key employees. Under these plans, options may be granted at prices not less
than 100% of the fair market value on the date of grant. Options expire 7-10
years from the date of grant, and options granted become exercisable, in ratable
installments, over periods of 3-5 years from the date of grant. The Compensation
Committee of the Board of Directors, at its sole discretion, may also include
stock appreciation rights in any option granted. There are no stock appreciation
rights outstanding under these plans.

The following table summarizes stock option activity for the three years
ended December 31, 2000:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
2000 1999
WEIGHTED- WEIGHTED-

NUMBER AVERAGE NUMBER AVERAGE
(SHARES IN THOUSANDS) OF SHARES PRICE OF SHARES PRICE
<S> <C> <C> <C> <C>
Outstanding at beginning of year 9,144 $11.77 6,600 $10.03
Granted ...t e 5,564 25.39 5,422 12.97
Exercised ...ttt (3,724) 10.12 (2,218) 9.54
Lapsed .ttt (1,334) 15.51 (660) 11.64
Outstanding at end of year ..... 9,650 19.52 9,144 11.77
Exercisable at end of year ..... 2,490 12.71 3,702 9.66
</TABLE>

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at
December 31, 2000:
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<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
OPTIONS OUTSTANDING
WEIGHTED-
AVERAGE WEIGHTED-
REMAINING AVERAGE
RANGE OF NUMBER OF CONTRACTUAL EXERCISE
EXERCISE PRICES SHARES LIFE (YEARS) PRICE
(Shares in thousands)
<S> <C> <C> <C>
$1.55-10.82. .0 ciiinnennn.. 1,244 4.8 S 9.77
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1998

WEIGHTED-

NUMBER AVERAGE
OF SHARES PRICE

<C> <C>

8,374 $ 9.82
1,136 11.41
(2,418) 9.94
(492) 10.15
6,600 10.03
3,080 9.73

OPTIONS EXERCISABLE

WEIGHTED-
AVERAGE
NUMBER OF EXERCISE
SHARES PRICE
<C> <C>
750 $ 9.26
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10.88-13.88. .. ..., 2,316 5.6 13.13 1,376 13.
14.22-19.86...cciiiinnn.. 4,312 5.9 18.47 342 15.
20.32-59.28. ... i 1,778 6.6 36.77 124 47.
</TABLE>

During 2000, approximately 5,564,000 options were granted pursuant to the
1999 Incentive Plan at exercise prices ranging from $19.83 per share to $59.28
per share. During 1999, 3,222,000 options were granted pursuant to the 1992
Stock Option Plan at exercise prices ranging from $12.88 per share to $14.41 per
share; 842,000 options were granted pursuant to the 1999 Incentive Plan at
exercise prices ranging from $14.85 per share to $19.60 per share and 500,000
options were granted to an officer at an exercise price of $13.63 per share
pursuant to a plan other than the 1992 and 1999 Plans. In connection with the
acquisition of Lumen Technologies, Lumen options were converted into
approximately 858,000 Company stock options, effective January 5, 1999. These
options had an average exercise price of $7.24 per share and were fully vested.
In January 1998, the Board of Directors granted 800,000 options to an officer at
an exercise price of $10.60 per share; 400,000 options were granted pursuant to
the 1992 Plan, and 400,000 options were granted pursuant to a plan other than
the 1992 Plan. In addition, 335,000 options were granted pursuant to the 1992
Plan at various dates in 1998 at exercise prices ranging from $11.57 per share
to $15.13 per share.

The weighted-average fair values of options granted during 2000, 1999 and
1998 were $8.83, $4.57 and $3.42, respectively. The values were estimated on the
date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The following
weighted-average assumptions were used in the model:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

2000 1999 1998
<S> <C> <C> <C>
Risk-free interest rate...... ... it 6.5% 4.9% 5.4%
Expected dividend yield...... .ttt ieeneennennnns % 2% 2%
Expected 1ives. ...ttt ittt ittt 3.7 years 5.5 years 6 years
Expected stock volatility.....ovuiiiinin i, 46% 27% 27%
</TABLE>

In April 1999, the Company's stockholders approved the 1998 Employee Stock
Purchase Plan, whereby participating employees currently have the right to
purchase common stock at a price equal to 85% of the lower of the closing price
on the first day or the last day of the six-month offering period. The number of
shares which an employee may purchase, subject to certain aggregate limits, is
determined by the employee's voluntary contribution, which may not exceed 10% of
base compensation. During 2000, the Company issued 420,288 shares under this
plan at a weighted-average price of $21.84 per share. During 1999, the Company
issued 716,000 shares under this plan at a weighted-average price of $11.07 per
share. There remains available for sale to employees an aggregate of 3.8 million
shares of the Company's stock out of 5 million shares authorized by the
stockholders.

As permitted by SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, the
Company continues to apply APB Opinion No. 25 in accounting for its stock option
and stock purchase plans. As required, the following table discloses pro forma
net income and diluted earnings per share had compensation cost for the
Company's stock-based compensation plans been determined based on the fair value
approach:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
(IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA) 2000 1999 1998
<S> <C> <C> <C>
Net income:
AS TEPOTEEA . vt it ettt ittt et e e e et $ 90,520 S 154,316 $ 102,002
= oo T o 1T N 76,092 145,354 100,000
Diluted earnings per share:
2N = oy oY s ol T .89 1.66 1.11
Pro forma. ...ttt it i et e e e, .76 1.56 1.09
</TABLE>

Pro forma compensation cost may not be representative of that to be
expected in future years since the estimated fair value of stock options is
amortized to expense over the vesting period, and additional options may be
granted in future years.
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Shareholder Rights Plan: Under a Shareholder Rights Plan, preferred stock
purchase rights were distributed on February 8, 1995 as a dividend at the rate
of one right for each share of common stock outstanding. Each right, when
exercisable, entitles a stockholder to purchase one one-thousandth of a share of
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a new series of junior participating preferred stock at a price of $30. The
rights become exercisable only if a person or group acquires 20% or more or
announces a tender or exchange offer for 30% or more of the Company's common
stock. This preferred stock is nonredeemable and will have 1,000 votes per
share. The rights are nonvoting, expire in 2005 and may be redeemed prior to
becoming exercisable. The Company has reserved 70,000 shares of preferred stock,
designated as Series C Junior Participating Preferred Stock, for issuance upon
exercise of such rights. If a person (an Acquiring Person) acquires or obtains
the right to acquire 20% or more of the Company's outstanding common stock
(other than pursuant to certain approved offers), each right (other than rights
held by the Acquiring Person) will entitle the holder to purchase shares of
common stock of the Company at one-half of the current market price at the date
of occurrence of the event. In addition, in the event that the Company is
involved in a merger or other business combination in which it is not the
surviving corporation or in connection with which the Company's common stock is
changed or converted, or it sells or transfers 50% or more of its assets or
earning power to another person, each right that has not previously been
exercised will entitle its holder to purchase shares of common stock of such
other person at one-half of the current market price of such common stock at the
date of the occurrence of the event.

Comprehensive Income: The components of accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss) were as follows:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
FOREIGN CURRENCY ACCUMULATED OTHER

TRANSLATION UNREALIZED GAINS COMPREHENSIVE
(IN THOUSANDS) ADJUSTMENTS ON SECURITIES INCOME (LOSS)
<S> <C> <C> <C>
Balance, December 28, 1997 S (4,380) $ 523 S (3,857)
Current year change ...... 7,723 (137) 7,586
Balance, January 3, 1999 . 3,343 386 3,729
Current year change ...... (17,804) 35 (17,769)
Balance, January 2, 2000 . (14,461) 421 (14,040)
Current year change ...... (25,484) 482 (25,002)
Balance, December 31, 2000 $(39,945) $ 903 $(39,042)
</TABLE>

The tax effects related to each component of other comprehensive income
(loss) were as follows:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
BEFORE-TAX TAX (PROVISION)

(IN THOUSANDS) AMOUNT BENEFIT
<S> <C> <C>
2000
Foreign currency translation adjustments ............. $(25,484) s -
Unrealized losses on securities:

Losses arising during the period ................... 673 (192)

Reclassification adjustment ..........ciiiuiiiiinenon. 1 -=
Net unrealized gains .......iiiiiiiiiiii ittt eennnn 674 (192)
Other comprehensive income (1lOSS) .uveveiunennnennnnnn $(24,810) $(192)
1999
Foreign currency translation adjustments ............. $(17,804) s --
Unrealized gains on securities:

Gains arising during the period .......... ... ... 143 (50)

Reclassification adjustment ........... ..., (89) 31
Net unrealized gains .......iuiiiii it 54 (19)
Other comprehensive income (lOSS) +.veviiinenennnennnn $(17,750) $ (19)
1998
Foreign currency translation adjustments ............. S 4,608 S --
Reclassification adjustment for translation

losses realized upon sale of Sealol Industrial Seals 3,115 -=
Unrealized losses on securities arising during

the pPeriod ...ttt e e e e e e e e (211) 74
Other comprehensive income .........ciiiiiiiiiinennnn. $ 7,512 S 74
</TABLE>
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NOTE 21. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to
concentrations of credit risk consist principally of temporary cash investments
and accounts receivable. The Company believes it had no significant
concentrations of credit risk as of December 31, 2000.

In the ordinary course of business, the Company enters into foreign
exchange forward contracts for periods consistent with its committed exposures
to mitigate the effect of foreign currency movements on transactions denominated
in foreign currencies. Transactions covered by hedge contracts include
intercompany and third-party receivables and payables. The contracts are
primarily in European and Asian currencies, generally have maturities that do
not exceed one month and have no cash requirements until maturity. Credit risk
and market risk are minimal because the forward contracts are with very large
banks, and gains and losses are offset against foreign exchange gains and losses
on the underlying hedged transactions. Realized gains and losses on foreign
currency instruments, which are hedges of committed transactions on assets and
liabilities, are recognized at the time the underlying transaction is completed.
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Realized and unrealized gains and losses on forward contracts, which are not
hedges of committed transactions, are recognized in income. The notional amount
of outstanding forward contracts was approximately $190 million as of December
31, 2000 and $75 million at January 2, 2000. The carrying value as of December
31, 2000 and January 2, 2000, which approximated fair value, was not
significant.

See Notes 1, 12 and 14 for disclosures about fair values, including
methods and assumptions, of other financial instruments.

NOTE 22. LEASES

The Company leases certain property and equipment under operating leases.
Rental expense charged to continuing operations for 2000, 1999 and 1998 amounted
to $18.1 million, $19 million and $10 million, respectively. Minimum rental
commitments under noncancelable operating leases are as follows: $16.0 million
in 2001, $8.0 million in 2002, $6.3 million in 2003, $5.3 million in 2004, $5
million in 2005 and $31 million after 2005.

Rental expenses charged to discontinued operations for 2000, 1999 and 1998
amounted to $0.9 million, $0.2, and $0.1, respectively. Minimum rental
commitments under noncancelable operating leases are as follows: $0.4 million in
2001, $0.3 million in 2002 and $0.2 million in 2003.

NOTE 23. INDUSTRY SEGMENT AND GEOGRAPHIC AREA INFORMATION

In 1998, the Company adopted SFAS No. 131, Disclosures about Segments of an
Enterprise and Related Information, which changed the way the Company reports
information about its operating segments. The Company's businesses are reported
as four reportable segments which reflect the Company's management and structure
under four SBUs. The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same
as those described in Note 1. The Company evaluates the performance of its
operating segments based on operating profit. Intersegment sales and transfers
are not significant.

The operating segments and their principal products and services are:

Life Sciences: Sample handling and measuring instruments, computer software
and chemical reagents for use in bio-screening and population screening
laboratories. Bio-screening activities include academic research applications
and drug discovery applications in high throughput screening laboratories of
major pharmaceutical companies. Population screening activities include
inherited and infectious disease screening, as well as routine clinical
diagnostics.

Optoelectronics: A broad spectrum of optoelectronic products, including
large area amorphous silicon detectors, high volume and high-performance
specialty lighting sources, detectors, imaging devices, as well as telecom
products, which include emitters, receivers and mux arrays.

Instruments: Products and services for measurement and testing
applications, including analytical instruments for the pharmaceutical, food and
beverage, environmental, chemical and plastics industries.

Fluid Sciences: Static and dynamic seals, sealing systems, solenoid valves,
bellows devices, advanced pneumatic components, systems and assemblies and sheet
metal-formed products for original equipment manufacturers and end users.
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Sales to U.S. government agencies, which were predominantly to the
Department of Defense and NASA in the former Technical Services segment, which
is reflected as discontinued operations in the accompanying financial statements
(see Note 7), were $326 million and $524 million in 1999 and 1998, respectively.

Sales and operating profit by segment for the three years ended December 31,
2000 are shown in the table below:
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<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
(IN THOUSANDS) 2000 1999 1998
<S> <C> <C> <C>
LIFE SCIENCES
S T $ 221,401 $ 158,009 $134,635
Operating Profit.... ..., (3,636) 15,768 9,044
OPTOELECTRONICS
S TR 496,851 447,681 274,506
Operating Profit (LOSS) «tveiiiennentnneenennenns 96,931 40,317 (4,133)
INSTRUMENTS
ST T 617,361 445,145 108,338
Operating Profit (LOSS) «vuiii i i inenenennn 56,897 (25,334) 1,708
FLUID SCIENCES
S T 251,754 225,311 237,537
Operating Profit..... ...ttt 45,071 31,078 3,887
OTHER
[ 2= T X = N — —-— 22,666
Operating Profit. ... ...ttt (10, 685) (1,188) 104,279
CONTINUING OPERATIONS
S T $1,587,367 $1,276,146 $777,682
Operating Profit....c.ueuee it ineenneenennn $ 184,578 $ 60,641 $114,785
</TABLE>
The Company's Technical Services segment, former Department of Energy
segment and Detection and Security Systems business (formerly included in the
Instruments segment) are presented as discontinued operations and, therefore,
are not included in the preceding table. The results for the periods presented
included certain nonrecurring items which are discussed in the Management's
Discussion and Analysis section of this document.
Additional information relating to the Company's operating segments is as
follows:
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
DEPRECIATION AND
AMORTIZATION EXPENSE CAPITAL EXPENDITURES
(IN THOUSANDS) 2000 1999 1998 2000 1999 1998
<S> <C> <C> <C> <C> <C> <C>
Life Sciences.......... $ 17,719 S 6,189 $ 5,059 $ 16,239 S 7,465 $ 5,415
Optoelectronics........ 25,967 34,430 25,615 34,242 21,155 17,256
Instruments............ 21,172 17,019 9,925 3,881 4,818 7,774
Fluid Sciences......... 10,663 7,093 6,042 10,895 4,515 10,325
Other.....coevivinnn.. 859 1,111 1,221 956 1,402 3,111
Continuing operations $ 76,380 $ 65,842 $ 47,862 S 66,213 $ 39,355 $ 43,881
Discontinued operations $ 2,768 $ 1,114 $ 2,517 S 4,385 S 3,078 S 2,641
</TABLE>
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
TOTAL ASSETS
(IN THOUSANDS) 2000 1999
<S> <C> <C>
Life SCLleNCES . i ittt ittt ettt ettt S 600,168 $ 125,025
OpPLOoEeleCtroNiCS . v vt ittt ittt et eieeean 512,395 448,453
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Instruments. ... ...,
Fluid SCilences. ...ttt it e
(including discontinued operations)...

Other

</TABLE>

720,195
123,096
276,276

2,232,130

821,271
102,421
199,723

$1,696,893

The following geographic area information for continuing operations includes

sales based on location of external customer and net property,

equipment based on physical location:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

SALES
(IN THOUSANDS) 2000 1999
<S> <C> <C>
U.S. v $ 755,152 S 626,983
United Kingdom 97,130 59,624
Germany ...... 100,445 97,160
Japan ........ 77,062 73,527
France ....... 51,787 42,425
Italy ..o 55,046 56,011
Other Non-U.S 450,745 320,416

</TABLE>
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<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
NET PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT

(IN THOUSANDS) 2000 1999
<S> <C> <C>
U.S. teiiiiiiiei e $159,432 $129,806
GEermany ....ceeeeeeen. 14,137 21,570
Finland .........c.... 26,356 17,277
Canada «..vvviieennnn. 19,051 14,718
United Kingdom ....... 12,376 12,822
Other Non-U.S. ....... 41,648 27,375

$273,000 $223,568
</TABLE>
NOTE 24. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

Selected quarterly financial information follows:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

(IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA)

<S>
2000
Sales
Operating income from continuing operations
Income from continuing operations before income
taxes
Income (loss)
Net income
Basic earnings (loss) per share:
Continuing operations
Net income
Diluted earnings (loss)
Continuing operations
Net income
Cash dividends per common share
Market price of common stock:
High

per share:
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plant and
1998
<C>
$417,147
37,289
66,207
28,265
28,375
17,192
183,207
$777,682
First Second
QUARTER QUARTER
<C> <C>
$ 373,403 $ 369,510
41,248 48,541
34,258 41,374
23,731 30,012
16,243 35,573
.24 .31
.17 .36
.24 .30
.16 .35
.07 .07
39.63 34.38
19.53 25.00
33.25 33.07

Third

QUARTER

$ 402,542
25,867

12,196
(3,410)
2,080

(.03)
.02

(.03)
.02
.07

53.50
31.07
52.19

Fourth

QUARTER

$ 441,912
66,679

57,235
38,138
36,624

59.
44 .
52.

.38
.37

.36
.35
.07

57
53
50

YEAR

<C>

$1,587,367
184,578

145,063
88,467
90,520

.90
.92

.86
.89
.28

59.57
19.53
52.50
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S = S $ 225,183 $ 286,529

Operating income (loss) from continuing operations ... 15,399 3,090
Income (loss) from continuing operations before

INCOME LAXES ittt ittt ittt ettt ettt ee ettt 11,001 (901)
Income (loss) from continuing operations ............. 8,679 (4,722)
D L S s YT ) 11T 14,087 3,617
Basic earnings (loss) per share:
Continuing operations ......iiiiiiii ittt .10 (.05)
Net INnCOME .ttt it ittt ittt ittt ittt e .16 .04
Diluted earnings (loss) per share:
Continuing operations ......iuiiiiiiiin it .09 (.05)
S S 5 T T .15 .04
Cash dividends per common share ..........ciiiiueninnn. .07 .07
Market price of common stock:
55§ 15.10 18.13
LW ettt it ittt it et e e e e e 12.75 13.25
L 7= 13.38 17.88
</TABLE>
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NOTE 25. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Stock Split

At the Company's April 24, 2001 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, an increase

in the number of authorized shares of common stock from 100,000,000 to
300,000,000 was approved. At the April 24, 2001 Board of Directors' Meeting a
two-for-one stock split was approved and was effected on June 1, 2001 by means
of a 100% stock dividend to stockholders of record on May 15, 2001.

NOTE 26. EVENTS (UNAUDITED) SUBSEQUENT TO DATE OF AUDITORS' REPORT

Acquisition

On July 16, 2001, the Company announced that it had entered into an

agreement to acquire Packard BioScience (Packard). Packard is a leading supplier

of automated liquid handling, sample preparation tools and advanced biochip
technologies. The transaction will be a stock merger whereby, when consummated,
the shareholders of Packard will receive 0.311 shares of the Company's common

stock for each share of Packard common stock. The transaction is expected to be

valued at approximately $750 million and is expected to close by year end.

Packard generated sales of approximately $165 million for its fiscal year ended

December 31, 2000. The transaction, which has been approved by the Board of
Directors of both companies, is subject to the approval of the Company's
shareholders and Packard's shareholders, regulatory approval, and other
customary closing conditions. The transaction will be accounted for as a
purchase in accordance with recently issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (SFAS) No. 141, Business Combinations, and SFAS No. 142, Intangible
Assets, whereby the purchase price will be allocated to the assets, including
all intangible assets, and liabilities assumed based on their respective fair
values.
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IF. REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
To the Stockholders of PerkinElmer, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of

PerkinElmer, Inc. (a Massachusetts corporation) and subsidiaries as of December
31, 2000 and January 2, 2000 and the related consolidated statements of income,

stockholders' equity and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2000,
January 2, 2000, and January 3, 1999. These financial statements are the

responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an

opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally

accepted in the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An

audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.
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$ 363,061
(2,155)

(8,999)
(5,903)
103,773

19.
15.
19.

.07)
.13

.11)
.13
.07

97
75
38

$ 401,373
44,307

44,301
29,477
32,289

22.
18.
20.

.32
.36

.31
.35
.07

50
32
85

$1,276,146
60,641

45,402
27,531
154,316

22.

12

.30
.69

.30
.66
.28

50

.75
20.

85
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In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of PerkinElmer,
Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2000 and January 2, 2000, and the
results of their operations and their cash flows for the years ended December
31, 2000, January 2, 2000 and January 3, 1999 in conformity with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States.

/s/ ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP

Boston, Massachusetts

January 25, 2001 (Except with respect to the matters discussed in Notes 7 and
25, for which the dates are August 2, 2001 and June 1, 2001, respectively).
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II. OTHER ANNUAL INFORMATION

ITI A. PERKINELMER, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION FOR THE FIVE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
FOR THE FIVE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
(IN THOUSANDS WHERE APPLICABLE) 2000 1999
<S> <C> <C>
OPERATIONS:
S T $ 1,587,367 $1,276,146
Operating income from continuing operations 184,578 60,641
Income from continuing operations ............. 88,467 27,531
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net
Of 1NCOME LAXES v ittt ittt ettt eeeneeennnn (2,400) 16,505
Gain on dispositions of discontinued
operations, net of income taxes ........... 4,453 110,280
Net INCOME &ttt ittt ettt ettt e eee et eeeennanns 90,520 154,316
Basic earnings per share:
Continuing operations ..........c.cveien.n. .90 .30
Discontinued operations .................. .02 1.39
Net income .......iiiiiiiiiiiiininnnennn .92 1.69
Diluted earnings per share:
Continuing operations ..........c.ocvie... .86 .30
Discontinued operations ................ .. .03 1.36
Net InCOme ...ttt ittt innnnnn .89 1.66
Weighted-average common shares outstanding:
BasicC vt e e 98,212 91,044
Diluted ..ttt i e e 102,278 93,138
FINANCIAL POSITION:
TOtaAl ASSEES vttt ittt ittt eeeeeteeeeeneennannn $ 2,232,130 $1,696,893
Short-term debt . ...ttt iiennnn 185,411 382,162
Long-term debt .. ...ttt i i 583,337 114,855
Long-term liabilities .........iiiiiiiiiiiinn 230,991 196,648
Stockholders' equity ...ovuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiia.. 728,389 550,776
Total debt/total capital ......iiiiieininnnnnnn 51% 47%
Common shares outstanding ............ccvvuo.. 99,548 92,732
CASH FLOWS:
Cash flows from continuing operations ......... S 145,025 S 99,815
Cash flows from discontinued operations ....... (5,604) 17,480
Cash flows from operating activities .......... 139,421 117,295
Depreciation and amortization from continuing
OPEerations ...ttt e i e e 76,380 65,842
Capital expenditures for continuing operations 66,213 39,355
Purchases of common stock ..........eiiiiiinn.. 10,589 970
Cash dividends per common share ............... .28 .28
</TABLE>
Note: The information presented above includes in-process research and
development charges, revaluation of acquired inventory, gains,
restructuring and other nonrecurring items discussed in greater detail
within Item 7, Management's Discussion and Analysis of Results of
Operations and Financial Condition.
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II B. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND
FINANCIAL CONDITION RELATING TO ANNUAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION

OVERVIEW
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<C> <C> <C>
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.87 .04 .28
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.26 .33 .36

1.11 .37 .63
90,644 91,514 94,596
91,768 91,796 94,944
$1,103,351 $740, 664 $744,120
157,888 46,167 21,499
129,835 114,863 115,104
124,929 96,034 76,105
399,667 328,388 365,106
42% 33% 27%

89,492 90,666 92,618

$ 39,133 $ 11,187 $ 48,109
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Fiscal 2000 represented the third year of the Company's transformation into
a global, high technology leader. During 2000, the Company continued its focus
on shifting the portfolio of businesses to higher growth potential. The Company
completed several acquisitions and divestitures including:

- acquisition of NEN Life Sciences

- divestiture of Berthold business

- divestiture of Judson business

- divestiture of IC Sensors business

In the second quarter of 2001, the Company announced its plan to dispose of
its Security and Detection Systems business.

These transactions resulted in gains from divestitures, acquisition-related
charges and restructuring charges. The table presented below reconciles the
reported results of the Company in the accompanying financial statements to the
financial results before nonrecurring items. On this adjusted basis, EPS
increased 22% during 2000 to $1.05 versus $.86 in 1999. Cash EPS increased 25%
to $1.34 in 2000 versus $1.07 in 1999.

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

2000 1999
<S> <C> <C>
Diluted EPS, as reported ........eeeeeeen.. $ .89 $ 1.66
Gains on dispositions .........c0ciiiiiin (.28) (1.32)
Acquisition and divestiture related charges .39 .26
Restructuring related charges ............. .05 .26
PAIUSEEA” EPS ittt 1.05 .86
Goodwill and intangibles amortization ..... .29 .21
MCasSh" EPS ittt i e e e, B 1.34 $ 1.07
</TABLE>

Excluding results of discontinued operations, 2000 adjusted EPS was $.95
versus $.65 in 1999, representing an increase of 46%.

ACQUISITIONS AND DIVESTITURES

On July 31, 2000, the Company completed its acquisition of NEN Life
Sciences, Inc. (NEN), a provider of state-of-the-art drug discovery products,
services, reagents and technologies to the life sciences industry.

The Company purchased NEN from an investor group led by Genstar Capital LLC
for an aggregate purchase price of approximately $400 million. In connection
with the acquisition, the Company paid approximately $350 million in cash and
issued warrants to purchase approximately 600,000 shares of the Company's common
stock in exchange for all of the outstanding shares, options and warrants of
NEN. In addition, the Company repaid approximately $50 million of outstanding
indebtedness of NEN. The Company financed the acquisition and repayment of the
outstanding indebtedness with $410 million of commercial paper borrowings with a
weighted-average interest rate of 7%. These short-term borrowings were repaid in
early August with proceeds from the issuance of long-term convertible
debentures.

NEN's operations, included in the consolidated results of the Company from
the date of acquisition, are reported in the Life Sciences segment. The
acquisition was accounted for as a purchase under APB Opinion No.16, and the
Company allocated the purchase price of NEN based on the fair values of the net
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. The allocation of the purchase price
has not yet been finalized, however, the Company does not expect material
changes. Portions of the purchase price, including intangible assets, were
valued by independent appraisers utilizing customary valuation procedures and
techniques. These intangible assets included approximately $24.3 million
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for acquired in-process R&D for projects that had not reached technological
feasibility as of the acquisition date and for which no alternative use existed.
This allocation represents the estimated fair value based on risk-adjusted cash
flows related to the in-process R&D projects; these costs were expensed in he
third quarter of 2000. Other acquired intangible assets totaling $75.9 million
included the fair value of trade names, trademarks, patents and developed
technology. Goodwill of $270.8 million resulting from the acquisition of NEN is
being amortized over 20 years. Approximately $4 million has been recorded as
accrued restructuring costs in connection with the acquisition of NEN. The
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restructuring plans include initiatives to integrate the operations of the
Company and NEN, and to reduce overhead. The primary components of these plans
relate to employment costs, consolidation of certain facilities, and the
termination of certain leases and other contractual obligations. Management is
in the process of developing its restructuring plans related to NEN, and
accordingly, the amounts recorded are based on management's current estimate of
these costs. The Company will finalize these plans during 2001, and the majority
of the restructuring actions are expected to occur during 2001.

On May 28, 1999, the Company completed its acquisition of the Analytical
Instruments Division (AI) of PE Corp. for an aggregate purchase price of
approximately $425 million, plus acquisition costs. In addition, under the terms
of the Purchase Agreement dated March 8, 1999 between the Company and PE Corp.
(the "Purchase Agreement"), the Company assumed German and other pension
liabilities of approximately $65 million. These pension liabilities were
historically funded on a pay-as-you go basis, and the funding going-forward is
expected to remain consistent. The acquisition was accounted for as a purchase
under Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 16 and the Company allocated
the purchase price of AI based on the fair values of the net assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. AI produces high-quality analytical testing instruments and
consumables, and generated 1998 fiscal year sales of $569 million. AI's
operations are reported in the Company's Instruments segment. Portions of the
purchase price, including intangible assets, were valued by independent
appraisers utilizing customary valuation procedures and techniques. These
intangible assets included approximately $23 million for acquired in-process
R&D. This allocation represents the estimated fair value based on risk-adjusted
cash flows related to the in-process R&D projects. At the date of the
acquisition of AI, the development of these projects had not yet reached
technological feasibility, and the R&D in process had no alternative future
uses. Accordingly, these costs were expensed in the second quarter of 1999.
Other acquired intangibles totaling $163.8 million included the fair value of
trade names, trademarks, patents and developed technology. These intangibles are
being amortized over their respective estimated useful lives ranging from 10-40
years. Goodwill resulting from the acquisition of AI is being amortized over 40
years. Approximately $28 million was recorded as accrued restructuring charges
in connection with the acquisition of AI. The restructuring plans include
initiatives to integrate the operations of the Company and of AI, and reduce
overhead. The primary components of these plans relate to: (a) employee
termination benefits and related costs for approximately 20% of the acquired
workforce of approximately 3,000 employees; (b) consolidation or shutdown of
certain operational facilities worldwide and (c) termination of certain leases
and other contractual obligations.

During the second quarter of 2000, the Company finalized its
restructuring plan for AI. Based on continued aggressive actions by the Company
to improve the cost structure of the acquired business, and increased costs
related primarily to employment integration, the Company adjusted its original
estimate of restructuring costs in connection with purchase accounting. The
majority of the remaining restructuring actions are expected to occur through
fiscal 2001.

On December 16, 1998, the Company acquired substantially all of the
outstanding common stock and options of Lumen Technologies, Inc. (Lumen), maker
of high-technology specialty light sources. The purchase price of approximately
$253 million, which included $75 million of assumed debt, was funded with
existing cash and commercial paper borrowings. The acquisition was accounted for
as a purchase under APB Opinion No. 16, and the Company allocated the purchase
price of Lumen based on the fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. Portions of the purchase price, including intangible assets, were
valued by independent appraisers utilizing customary valuation procedures and
techniques. These intangible assets included approximately $2.3 million for
acquired in-process R&D for projects that did not have future alternative uses.
This allocation represents the estimated fair value based on risk-adjusted cash
flows related to the in-process R&D projects. At the date of the acquisition,
the development of these projects had not yet reached technological feasibility,
and the R&D in process had no alternative future uses. Accordingly, these costs
were expensed in the fourth quarter of 1998. Acquired intangibles totaling $11.8
million included the fair value of trade names, trademarks and patents. These
intangibles are being amortized over their estimated useful life of 10 years.
Goodwill resulting from the Lumen acquisition is being amortized over 30 years.
Approximately $5 million was recorded as accrued restructuring charges in
connection with the acquisition. The restructuring plans included initiatives to
integrate the operations of the Company and Lumen, and to reduce overhead. The
primary components of these plans related to: (a) transfer of certain
manufacturing activities to lower-cost facilities, (b) integration of the sales
and marketing organization and (c) termination of certain contractual
obligations. The restructuring actions have been completed.
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During the first quarter of 2000, the Company sold its micromachined
sensors and specialty semiconductor businesses for cash of $24.3 million,
resulting in a pre-tax gain of $6.7 million. Combined financial results of the
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divested businesses for 2000 and 1999 were not material to the consolidated
results of the Company. During the third quarter of 2000, the Company recorded
pre-tax gains totaling $1.8 million from an insurance settlement.

During the fourth quarter of 2000, the Company sold its Berthold business
at a pre-tax gain of $10 million. The Company has deferred gain recognition of
approximately $11.9 million of sales proceeds from this divestiture in
connection with certain contingencies related to the sale. Revenues for 2000 and
1999 for the divested business were $30 million and $38 million, respectively.
Also during the fourth quarter of 2000, the Company recorded a pre-tax gain of
$16 million from the sale of a building.

During the second quarter of 1999, the Company sold its Structural
Kinematics business for cash of $15 million, resulting in a pre-tax gain of $4.3
million. Additionally, as a result of the Company's continuing evaluation of its
Instruments businesses, the Company undertook certain repositioning actions
during the second quarter of 1999, including exiting selected product lines and
activities, rebalancing its customer mix in certain businesses and other related
activities. During the fourth quarter of 1999, the Company sold its KT Aerofab
business for cash of $4.4 million, resulting in a pre-tax gain of $0.3 million.
The net operating results of the divested businesses for 1999 were not
significant.

In April 1998, the Company sold its Sealol Industrial Seals division for
cash of $100 million, resulting in a pre-tax gain of $58.3 million. The
after-tax gain of this divestiture was $42.6 million. Sealol's 1998 sales prior
to the disposition were $23 million, and its operating income was $2.1 million.
In January 1998, the Company sold its Rotron division for $103 million in cash,
resulting in a pre-tax gain of $64.4 million. During the first quarter of 1998,
the Company also sold a small product line for $4 million in cash, resulting in
a pre-tax gain of $3.1 million. The after-tax gain of these divestitures as
$45.2 million in 1998. During 2000 and 1999, in connection with the 1998
dispositions of the Company's Rotron and Sealol Industrial Seals divisions, the
Company recognized approximately $3.7 million and $13.2 million respectively, of
pre-tax gains from the previously deferred sales proceeds as a result of the
favorable resolution of certain events and contingencies.

All of the gains described above are reported on the "Gains on
Dispositions" line in the consolidated income statements.

DISCUSSION OF CONSOLIDATED RESULTS OF OPERATIONS -- 2000 COMPARED TO 1999

Revenues for 2000 were $1,587 million, increasing $311 million, or 24%,
versus revenues of $1,276 million in 1999. Organic growth for 2000 was 11%,
which the Company defines as growth in historical businesses plus growth in
acquired businesses assuming they were owned in prior periods, reduced for the
effects of exited businesses and foreign exchange. Revenues by segment during
2000 versus 1999 are discussed in further detail below under the caption
"Segment Results of Operations."

Due to the number of changes in the portfolio of businesses, the table
presented below reconciles reported net income to net income before nonrecurring
items and goodwill and intangibles amortization.

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
(IN THOUSANDS) 2000
<S> <C>
Adjusted Income from Continuing Operations ................... $ 220,246
Other Expense, Net . ...ttt tintenteneteneeneeneenens (40,412)
Adjusted Income from Continuing Operations Before Income Taxes 179,834
Continuing Operations Nonrecurring Items:
Acquisition-Related Charges ........iiuiiiiiiinininnennns (29,816)
Gains on DisposSitions ...ttt it i e 33,639
Restructuring Charges, Net .......uiiiiiiiiiniinieneennnn (3,209)
Other Nonrecurring Items, nNet .......iiiiiiiiiiiinnennn (1,527)
Net Nonrecurring ILEMS ...ttt eeneeneenns (913)
Goodwill and Intangibles Amortization ............iiiiiiien.. (33,858)
Income from Continuing Operations Before Income Taxes ........ 145,063
Provision foOr INCOME TaAXES et teunnneeseenneneeeeeeeneeeeeennns (56,596)
Income from Continuing Operations ...........ociuiiiniiinieneenns 88,467
Gain/Income from Discontinued Operations, Net of Income Taxes 2,053
NEet INCOME t ottt ettt ettt ettt tat ettt iaee ettt $ 90,520
</TABLE>

Adjusted operating income before goodwill and intangibles amortization,
gains, acquisition charges, restructuring and other nonrecurring items was
$220.2 million in 2000 versus $135.2 million in 1999, representing an increase
of $85 million, or 63%, during 2000. This increase during 2000 was due to higher
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revenues discussed above, the benefits of restructuring and productivity
initiatives, and the favorable shift of the portfolio to higher margin
businesses through acquisitions and divestitures completed during 2000.

SEGMENT RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The Company's businesses are reported as four segments, reflecting the
Company's management methodology and structure. The Company's Technical Services
segment and the Company's Security and Detection Systems business have been
classified as discontinued operations. The accounting policies of the segments
are the same as those described in the footnotes to the accompanying
consolidated financial statements. The Company evaluates performance based on
operating profit of the respective segments. The discussion that follows is a
summary analysis of the primary changes in operating results by segment for 2000
versus 1999 and 1999 versus 1998.

35
Life Sciences
2000 Compared to 1999

Sales of $221.4 million for 2000 increased $63.4 million, or 40%, versus
1999. Organic revenue growth for 2000 was 18%. Higher volumes from high
throughput screening, drug discovery applications, revenues from new products,
and the inclusion of revenues from NEN Life Sciences acquired in August 2000,
were the primary drivers of the increase in 2000 versus 1999.

Purchase accounting and restructuring charges contributed to a reported
operating loss of $3.6 million for 2000 versus reported operating income of
$15.8 million in 1999. The 2000 operating loss included goodwill and intangibles
amortization of $9.3 million and certain acquisition related charges and other
nonrecurring items including a $24.3 million charge for acquired in-process R&D;
a $1.8 million charge for the revaluation of acquired inventory; $3.9 million of
net restructuring charges and $3.5 million of other acquisition-related charges.
The 1999 operating profit included goodwill and intangibles amortization of $2.4
million and net restructuring charges of $5.8 million. Operating profit before
goodwill and intangibles amortization and nonrecurring items for 2000 was $39.2
million, representing an increase of $15.2 million, or 63%, versus 1999. Higher
revenues discussed above, particularly sales of higher-margin new products, and
revenues from the NEN acquisition contributed to the increase in operating
profit before goodwill and intangibles amortization and nonrecurring items in
2000 versus 1999.

1999 Compared to 1998

Sales of $158 million for 1999 increased $23.4 million versus 1998.
Adjusting for the impact of the stronger dollar, revenue growth during 1999 was
17%. Higher volumes from continued strength in the high throughput screening and
genetic disease screening markets, and revenues from new products were the
primary contributors to this increase during 1999.

Reported operating profit was $15.8 million during 1999 versus $9 million
in 1998, representing an increase of $6.8 million, or 76%. 1999 operating profit
included net restructuring charges of $5.8 million. Excluding nonrecurring items
in 1999 and 1998, operating profit increased $7.9 million during 1999 to $21.6
million, representing a 58% increase versus 1998. Higher sales discussed above
and increased gross margins across most businesses, driven primarily by
higher-margin new products sold in 1999, were the primary contributors for the
overall 1999 increase compared to 1998.

Optoelectronics
2000 Compared to 1999

Sales for 2000 were $496.9 million versus $447.7 million in 1999,
representing an increase of $49.2 million, or 11%. Organic revenue growth for
2000 was 22%. Strong revenue growth across all businesses contributed to this
increase in 2000 versus 1999.

Reported operating profit increased $56.6 million in 2000 to $96.9 million
versus $40.3 million in 1999, representing a 140% increase. The 2000 operating
profit included goodwill and intangibles amortization of $8.1 million and
certain nonrecurring items: gains on dispositions of $23.4 million;
restructuring credits of $9.9 million; restructuring charges of $10 million and
restructuring-related charges of $1.9 million related to the shift by the
Company to lower-cost manufacturing areas. The 1999 operating profit included
goodwill and intangibles amortization of $9.5 million and certain nonrecurring
items: net restructuring charges of $5.5 million and an asset impairment charge
of $3 million. Operating profit before goodwill and intangibles amortization and
nonrecurring items for 2000 was $83.6 million, increasing $25.3 million, or 43%,
versus 1999. The increase in 2000 was due primarily to higher revenues discussed
above, the sale of higher-margin new products and the continued benefits of Six
Sigma and other manufacturing initiatives.
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1999 Compared to 1998

Sales for 1999 were $447.7 million, compared to 1998 sales of $274.5
million, representing an increase of $173.2 million, or 63%. Revenue from the
acquired specialty lighting business and strong organic growth was partially
offset by weakness in the sensors business and exited businesses.

Reported operating profit for 1999 was $40.3 million versus an operating
loss of $4.1 million in 1998. The 1999 operating income included net
restructuring charges of $5.5 million and an asset impairment charge of $3
million. Excluding nonrecurring items, operating profit in 1999 and 1998 was
$48.8 million and $18.5 million, respectively, representing an increase of $30.3
million, or 164%. The 1999 increase was primarily due to higher revenues
discussed above, higher margin new products, the Company's exit from
unprofitable businesses and the shift by the Company to lower-cost manufacturing
areas.

36
Instruments

2000 Compared to 1999

Sales for 2000 were $617.4 million, increasing $172.3 million, or 39%,
versus 1999. Organic revenue growth in 2000 was basically flat. The increase in
reported 2000 revenues versus 1999 was due primarily to the inclusion of the AT
business for a full year, partially offset by the company's sale of its Berthold
business in the fourth quarter and the effects of a stronger dollar in 2000.

Reported operating profit for 2000 was $56.9 million versus an operating
loss in 1999 of $25.3 million. The 2000 operating profit included goodwill and
intangibles amortization of $14 million and certain acquisition charges and
restructuring-related charges and other nonrecurring items: $10 million of gains
on dispositions; $0.7 million of acquisition-related charges and $1.8 million of
other restructuring-related items. The 1999 operating profit included goodwill
and intangibles amortization of $11 million, certain acquisition-related charges
and other nonrecurring items: $23 million charge for acquired in-process R&D;
$15 million asset impairment charge; $9.8 million charge for the revaluation of
acquired inventory and restructuring-related and other charges of $2.8 million.

For 2000, operating profit before goodwill and intangibles amortization and
nonrecurring items was $63.4 million versus $36.3 million in 1999, representing
an increase of $27.1 million, or 75%. The increase is due primarily to the
inclusion of the AI acquisition for a full year in 2000, improvements in
manufacturing cost structure and benefits from restructuring actions.

1999 Compared to 1998

Sales for 1999 and 1998 were $445.1 million and $108.3 million,
respectively, increasing $336.8 million, or 311%, during 1999 compared to 1998.
1999 revenues from acquisitions during 1999 offset the effects of divestitures
and lower revenues in certain base businesses, primarily automotive, compared to
1998.

AT acquisition purchase accounting charges and certain nonrecurring items
during 1999 contributed to a reported operating loss of $25.3 million versus
operating income of $1.7 million in 1998. The 1999 operating loss included the
following: $23 million charge related to acquired in-process research and
development; a $9.8 million charge related to the revaluation of acquired
inventory; net restructuring charges of $1.4 million; an asset impairment charge
of $15 million and other repositioning costs of $1.4 million. Excluding
nonrecurring items in 1999 and 1998, operating profit in 1999 increased $17.6
million, or 229%, to $25.3 million compared to 1998. Operating profit from the
acquired AI and Lumen photolithography businesses were partially offset by the
effects of depressed market conditions in the automotive business during most of
1999.

Fluid Sciences
2000 Compared to 1999

Sales for 2000 increased $26.5 million to $251.8 million, a 12% increase
versus 1999. Organic revenue growth was 25% in 2000. Strong volume in the
semiconductor and power generation markets was the primary contributor to the
increase in 2000.

Reported operating profit for 2000 was $45.1 million, up $14 million, or
45%, versus 1999. The 2000 operating profit included goodwill and intangibles
amortization of $2.5 million and certain nonrecurring items: gains on
disposition of $2.7 million and restructuring charges of $2.4 million. The 1999
operating profit included goodwill and intangibles amortization of $2.7 million;
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$4.6 million of gains on dispositions and a net restructuring credit of $2.2
million. Operating profit before goodwill and intangibles amortization and
nonrecurring items for 2000 was $47.7 million, increasing $20.7 million, or 77%
versus 1999. Higher revenues discussed above and the benefits of lean
manufacturing initiatives were the primary contributors to the increase in 2000.

1999 Compared to 1998

During the third quarter of 1999, the Company's business segment previously
referred to as Engineered Products was renamed Fluid Sciences.

Sales for 1999 were $225.3 million compared to $237.5 million in 1998,
representing a $12.2 million, or 5%, decrease. Recovery in the semiconductor
industry and continued growth in the power generation businesses was offset by
continued weakness in the aerospace markets and the absence of revenues from
businesses exited by the Company during 1998, primarily certain sheet metal
fabrication operations.

Reported 1999 operating profit increased $27.2 million to $31.1 million
compared to $3.9 million in 1998. The 1999 operating income included gains on
dispositions of $4.6 million and a net restructuring credit of $2.2 million.
Excluding 1999 and 1998 nonrecurring items, 1999 operating profit was $24.3
million versus $25.2 million in 1998. Higher sales discussed above and higher
gross margins due to Six Sigma and

37

restructuring initiatives were offset by continued weakness in the aerospace
markets and the absence of revenues from businesses exited by the Company during
1998.

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS -- RESTRUCTURING AND ASSET IMPAIRMENT CHARGES

The Company developed restructuring plans during 1998 to integrate and
consolidate its businesses and recorded restructuring charges in the first and
second quarters of 1998, which are discussed separately below.

During the first quarter of 1998, management developed a plan to
restructure certain businesses. The plan resulted in pre-tax restructuring
charges totaling $28.6 million. As discussed in Note 3 to the accompanying
consolidated financial statements, the principal actions in the restructuring
plan included close-down or consolidation of a number of offices and facilities,
transfer of assembly activities to lower-cost geographic locations, disposal of
underutilized assets, withdrawal from certain product lines and general
cost reductions.

During the second quarter of 1998, the Company expanded its continuing
effort to restructure certain businesses to further improve performance. The
plan resulted in additional pre-tax restructuring charges of $19.5 million. As
discussed in Note 3, the principal actions in this restructuring plan included
the integration of operating divisions into five strategic business units
(SBUs), close-down or consolidation of a number of production facilities and
general cost reductions. The Technical Services segment was subsequently sold
during the third quarter of 1999.

The following table summarizes the current year restructuring activity
related to the 1998 plans:

<TABLE>

<CAPTION>

(IN MILLIONS)

<S> <C>
Accrued restructuring costs at beginning of period $6.4
REVETSALS ittt ittt ettt et e e e e (6.3)
Charges/WriteoffsS v n ettt i eee et teeeennnn (.1)

Accrued restructuring costs .........ciiiiiiiiiin. $ --
</TABLE>

The components of the restructuring charges met the criteria set forth in
Emerging Issues Task Force Issue 94-3, Liability Recognition for Certain
Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity (Including
Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring). The charges do not include
additional costs associated with the restructuring plans, such as training,
consulting, purchase of equipment and relocation of employees and equipment.
These costs were charged to operations or capitalized, as appropriate, when
incurred.

During the third quarter of 1999, due to the substantial completion of the
actions of the 1998 restructuring plans, the Company reevaluated its 1998
restructuring plans. As a result of this review, costs associated with the
previously planned shutdown of two businesses were no longer required due to
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actions taken to improve performance. As a result of these developments, the
Company recognized a restructuring credit of $12 million during the third
quarter of 1999, which primarily affected the Fluid Sciences and Optoelectronics
segments. The $12 million credit is reflected in "Restructuring Charges, Net" in
the consolidated income statements.

During the second quarter of 2000, the Company recognized a restructuring
credit of $6 million related to its 1998 restructuring plans. This resulted from
the Company's strategic review during the second quarter of 2000 of its
portfolio of businesses, actions taken to improve performance at costs lower
than originally estimated, and the sale of certain businesses included in the
restructuring plans.

The acquisitions by the Company discussed in Note 2 and the Company's
divestiture during the third quarter of 1999 of its Technical Services segment
(exiting government services) were strategic milestones in the Company's
transition to a commercial high technology company. Consistent with the
strategic direction of the Company and concurrent with the reevaluation of
existing restructuring plans during the third quarter of 1999, the Company
developed additional plans to restructure certain businesses to continue to
improve the Company's performance.

These plans resulted in a pre-tax restructuring charge of $23.5 million
recorded in the third quarter of 1999. As discussed in Note 3, the principal
actions in these restructuring plans include close-down or consolidation of a
number of offices and facilities, transfer of assembly activities to lower-cost
geographic locations, disposal of underutilized assets, withdrawal from certain
product lines and general cost reductions. The restructuring plans are expected
to result in the elimination of approximately 400 positions, primarily in the
manufacturing and sales categories. The major components of the restructuring
charge were $13.6 million of employee separation costs to restructure the
worldwide organization, including the sales and manufacturing focus, $2.3
million of noncash charges to dispose of certain product lines and assets
through sale or abandonment and $7.6 million of charges to terminate lease and
other contractual obligations no longer required as a result of the
restructuring plans. The charges do not include additional costs associated with
the restructuring plans, such as training, consulting, purchase of equipment and
relocation of employees and equipment. These costs will be charged to operations
or capitalized, as appropriate, when incurred.
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The following table summarizes the current year restructuring activity
related to the 1999 plan:

<TABLE>

<CAPTION>
(IN MILLIONS)

<S> <C>
Accrued restructuring costs at beginning of period $ 20.8
PrOVISIONS t ittt e e e e e e 2.4
REVEIrSALS v ittt ittt ittt it e i it e e (4.9)
Charges/Writeoffs ...ttt et (12.4)
Accrued restructuring costs at end of period ..... $ 5.9

</TABLE>

During the fourth quarter of 2000, the Company reevaluated its 1999
restructuring plan due to the substantial completion of the respective actions
and the continuing transformation of the portfolio of businesses during 2000.
This resulted in the reversal of $4.9 million of remaining reserves from the
1999 plan and the recording of a pre-tax restructuring charge of $15.1 million
for actions to be completed in 2001 (the "2000 plan"). These charges related to
the Company's Life Sciences and Optoelectronics segments. The principal actions
in the restructuring actions included close-down or consolidation of a number of
offices and facilities, transfer of assembly activities to lower cost geographic
locations, disposal of unutilized assets and general cost reductions. The
restructuring charges were broken down as follows by operating segment: The Life
Sciences' principal actions are associated with rationalization of its
distribution network and overall facility consolidation. The Optoelectronics'
principal actions are associated with its Lighting and Imaging businesses and
relate to the shift of certain manufacturing to low cost geographic areas,
facility consolidation and general cost reductions.

The following table summarizes activity related to the 2000 plan:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
EMPLOYEE DISPOSAL OF
SEPARATION CERTAIN PRODUCT
(IN MILLIONS) COSTS LINES AND ASSETS
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<S> <C> <C> <C>

Life Sciences $ 2.9 s .1
Optoelectronics 7.2 2.8
Total restructuring charges 715?1 7;j;
Amounts during 2000 ___:: __::
Accrued restructuring costs at December 31, 2000 ;IBTI ;;T;

</TABLE>

During the second quarter of 2000, the Company finalized its original
estimates of the goodwill and restructuring plans related to the acquired AI
business. As a result of strategic review of the acquired business, continued
aggressive actions by the Company to improve the cost structure of the acquired
business, and increased costs related primarily to employment integration, the
Company adjusted its original estimate of restructuring costs recorded at the
acquisition date in connection with purchase accounting.

Approximately $4 million was recorded as accrued restructuring costs in
connection with the NEN acquisition in the third quarter of 2000.

The following table summarizes the current year restructuring activity
related to the Lumen, AI, and NEN acquisitions:

<TABLE>

<CAPTION>
(IN MILLIONS)

<S> <C>
Accrued restructuring costs at beginning of period $14.1
Provisions, through purchase accounting, net ..... 28.0
Charges/Writeoffs vt ittt i eeeeenenn (9.8)

Accrued restructuring CoSts ........iiiiiiiiinan.n

</TABLE>

There are no accrued restructuring costs related to Lumen at December 31,
2000 as all respective actions were completed during 2000. Cash outlays during
2000 were approximately $33 million for all of these plans. The Company expects
to incur approximately $30 to $35 million of cash outlays in connection with
these plans throughout fiscal 2001. These funds will come from operating cash
flows or borrowings from existing credit facilities. The majority of the actions
remaining are expected to occur during 2001. The estimated full year's pre-tax
savings under the restructuring plans, due primarily to lower depreciation and
lower employment costs, when the plans are fully implemented are anticipated to
be approximately $30 to $35 million, or $.39 to $.45 per share.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

In July 2001, the Company announced its plan to sell its Security and
Detection Systems business. The company has accounted for the planned sale of
its Security and Detection Systems business as a discontinued operation in
accordance with APB Opinion No. 30 and, accordingly, the results of operations
of Security and Detection System business have been segregated from continuing
operations and reported as a separate line item on the Company's accompanying
consolidated income statements.
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On August 20, 1999, the Company sold the assets of its Technical Services

segment, including the outstanding capital stock of EG&G Defense Materials,
Inc., a subsidiary of the Company, to EG&G Technical Services, Inc., an
affiliate of The Carlyle Group LP (the "Buyer"), for approximately $250 million
in cash and the assumption by the Buyer of certain liabilities of the Technical
Services segment. Details of the transaction are discussed in Note 7 to the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

The results of operations of the Technical Services segment were previously
reported as one of five business segments of the Company. The Company accounted
for the sale of its Technical Services segment as a discontinued operation in
accordance with APB Opinion No. 30 Reporting the Results of Operations -
Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business and Extraordinary,
Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions. Accordingly, the
results of operations of the Technical Services segment have been segregated
from continuing operations and reported as a separate line item on the Company's
accompanying consolidated income statements.

OTHER EXPENSE

2000 Compared to 1999
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Other expense, net, was $39.5 million in 2000 versus $15.2 million in 1999.
This net increase in other expense was due primarily to the higher interest
expense on increased debt levels resulting from acquisitions.

1999 Compared to 1998

Other expense, net, was $15.2 million in 1999 versus $0.8 million in 1998.
This net increase in other expense was due primarily to the impact of higher
interest expense on increased debt levels, at higher 1999 short-term rates,
resulting from acquisitions. Included in 1999 other expense was $2.2 million of
income received by the Company related to the demutualization of a life
insurance company in which the Company is a policyholder.

INCOME TAX PROVISION

The provision for income taxes on pre-tax income from continuing operations
for 2000 and 1999 was $56.6 million and $17.9 million, respectively. Reported
income tax expense as a percent of pre-tax income for 2000 and 1999 was 39.0%
and 39.4%, respectively, due, in part, to the income tax effect on nonrecurring
items.

FINANCIAL CONDITION

Short-term debt at December 31, 2000 was $186 million and was comprised
primarily of commercial paper borrowings. The weighted-average interest rate on
the commercial paper borrowings, which had maturities of 60 days or less, was
6.7%.

Short-term debt at January 2, 2000 was $382 million and included one-year
promissory notes of $150 million issued to PE Corp. at an interest rate of 5%,
money market loans of $85 million and commercial paper borrowings of $140
million.

In March 2001, the Company's $300 million revolving credit facility was
refinanced and will expire in March 2002 and the Company also refinanced an
additional $100 million revolving credit facility which expires in March 2006.
These agreements, which serve as backup facilities for the commercial paper
borrowings, have no significant commitment fees. There were no amounts
outstanding under these lines at January 2, 2000 or December 31, 2000.

At December 31, 2000 and January 2, 2000, long-term debt was $583.3 million
and $114.9 million, respectively, and included $115 million of unsecured
ten-year notes issued in October 1995 at an interest rate of 6.8%, which mature
in 2005. The carrying amount approximated the estimated fair value at December
31, 2000, based on a quoted market price.

In August 2000, the Company sold zero coupon senior convertible debentures
with an aggregate purchase price of $460 million. The Company used the
offering's net proceeds of approximately $448 million to repay a portion of its
commercial paper borrowings, which had been increased temporarily to finance the
NEN acquisition. Deferred issuance costs of $12 million were recorded as a
noncurrent asset and are being amortized over three years. The debentures, which
were offered by a prospectus supplement pursuant to the Company's effective
shelf registration statement, are due August 2020, and were priced with a yield
to maturity of 3.5%. At maturity, the Company will repay $921 million, comprised
of $460 million of original purchase price plus accrued interest. The Company
may redeem some or all of the debentures at any time on or after August 7, 2003
at a redemption price equal to the issue price plus accrued original issue
discount through the redemption date. Holders of the debentures may require the
Company to repurchase some or all of the debentures in August 2003 and August
2010, or at any time when there is a change in control of the Company, as is
customary and ordinary for debentures of this nature, at a repurchase price
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equal to the initial price to the public plus accrued original issue discount
through the date of the repurchase. The debentures are currently convertible
into 10.8 million shares of the Company's common stock at approximately $42.50
per share.

In connection with the completion of the NEN acquisition on July 31, 2000,
the Company paid approximately $350 million in cash and issued warrants to
purchase approximately 600,000 shares of the Company's common stock in exchange
for all of the outstanding shares, options and warrants of NEN. In addition, the
Company repaid approximately $50 million of outstanding indebtedness of NEN. The
Company financed the acquisition and repayment of the outstanding indebtedness
with $410 million of commercial paper borrowings with a weighted-average
interest rate of 7%. These short-term borrowings were repaid in August 2000 with
proceeds from the issuance of long-term convertible debentures, as discussed
above.

Cash and cash equivalents decreased by $7.4 million and were $121.4 million
at the end of fiscal 2000. Net cash provided by continuing operations operating
activities for 2000 was $145 million. This was comprised of net income before
depreciation, amortization and other noncash items, net, of $164.2 million,

Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document


http://www.secdatabase.com

partially offset by gains on dispositions and sales of investments, net, of
$38.2 million and a $19.2 million net change in certain assets and liabilities
and other items during 2000. The primary components of this net change included
a $2.7 million increase in accounts receivable, a $18.4 million increase in
inventory and $33 million of cash outlays associated with restructuring
activities. The increase in inventory is due primarily to the inclusion of NEN
acquired in 2000. Capital expenditures were $66.2 million in 2000. The Company
estimates that fiscal 2001 capital expenditures will be approximately $65 to $70
million.

During 2000 and 1999, the Company purchased 396 thousand and 40 thousand
shares, respectively, of its common stock through periodic purchases on the open
market at a cost of $10.5 million and $0.9 million, respectively. As of December
31, 2000 the Company had authorization to purchase 11.4 million additional
shares.

The Company has relatively limited involvement with derivative financial
instruments and uses forward contracts to mitigate the effect of foreign
currency movements on transactions denominated in foreign currencies. The
contracts generally have maturities that do not exceed one month and have no
cash requirements until maturity. Credit risk and market risk are minimal
because the contracts are with large banks and gains and losses are offset
against foreign exchange gains and losses on the underlying hedged transactions.
The notional amount of outstanding forward contracts was approximately $190
million as of December 31, 2000.

DIVIDENDS

During fiscal 2000, the Company's Board of Directors declared four regular
quarterly cash dividends of 7 cents per share each, resulting in an annual rate
of 28 cents per share.

STOCK SPLIT

At the Company's Annual Meeting of Stockholders, an increase in the number
of authorized shares of common stock from 100,000,000 shares to 300,000,000
shares was approved. At the April 24, 2001 Board of Directors Meeting a
two-for-one stock split was approved. The stock split has been retroactively
reflected in these financial statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL

The Company 1is conducting a number of environmental investigations and
remedial actions at current and former Company locations and, along with other
companies, has been named a potentially responsible party (PRP) for certain
waste disposal sites. The Company accrues for environmental issues in the
accounting period that the Company's responsibility is established and when the
cost can be reasonably estimated. The Company has accrued $8.8 million as of
December 31, 2000, representing management's estimate of the total cost of
ultimate disposition of known environmental matters. Such amount is not
discounted and does not reflect any recovery of any amounts through insurance or
indemnification arrangements. These cost estimates are subject to a number of
variables, including the stage of the environmental investigations, the
magnitude of the possible contamination, the nature of the potential remedies,
possible joint and several liability, the timeframe over which remediation may
occur and the possible effects of changing laws and regulations. For sites where
the Company has been named a PRP, management does not currently anticipate any
additional liability to result from the inability of other significant named
parties to contribute. The Company expects that such accrued amounts could be
paid out over a period of up to five years. As assessments and remediation
activities progress at each individual site, these liabilities are reviewed and
adjusted to reflect additional information as it becomes available. There have
been no environmental problems to date that have had or are expected to have a
material effect on the Company's financial position or results of operations.
While it is reasonably possible that a material loss exceeding the amounts
recorded may have been incurred, the preliminary stages of the investigations
make it impossible for the Company to reasonably estimate the range of potential
exposure.
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IITI. INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED) :

III A. CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED APRIL 1, 2001
AND APRIL 2, 2000
PERKINELMER, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS
(UNAUDITED)

<TABLE>
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<CAPTION>

(In thousands except per share data)
<S>

SALES
Cost of Sales
Research and Development Expenses
In-Process Research and Development Charges
Selling, General and Administrative Expenses
Restructuring Charges (Credits), Net
Gains on Dispositions

OPERATING INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Other Expense, Net

Income From Continuing Operations Before Income Taxes
Provision for Income TaXeS ... ierenenenenenennnnnns
INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Loss from Discontinued Operations,

Net Income of Taxes

Net TInCOmMe ...ttt it ettt ieaeeenennaanas
BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE:
Continuing Operations
Discontinued Operations

Net INCOME i i ittt ittt ittt eeennnnas
DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE:

Continuing Operations
Discontinued Operations

Net Income

Weighted Average Shares of Common Stock
Outstanding:
Basic
0 o Y o
Cash Dividends Per Common Share
</TABLE>

The accompanying unaudited notes are an integral part of
financial statements.
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IIT B. CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS AS OF APRIL 1, 2001 AND
PERKINELMER, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

(In thousands except per share data)

<S>
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable, net
Inventories
Other Current Assets
Net Assets of Discontinued Operations

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS &ttt ittt it ttteneeteennnnneeseens
Property, Plant and Equipment:
At Cost
Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization

Net Property, Plant and Equipment ..............c...o...
Investments
Intangible Assets, net

Other Assets

Three Months Ended

APRIL 1, APRIL 2,
2001 2000
<C> <C>
$404,535 $373,403
231,307 225,899
21,837 19,640
2,493 -
103,195 92,012
(1,500) 2,400
(3,887) (7,796)
51,090 41,248
(12,916) (6,995)
38,174 34,253
14,238 10,523
$ 23,936 $ 23,730
(440) (7,487)
$ 23,496 $ 16,243
S 24 S .24
-= (.08)
$ 24 $ 17
23 .24
-- (.07)
$ 23 $ 16
100,154 96,926
104,100 100,822
$ .07 $ .07

these consolidated

DECEMBER 31, 2000

APRIL 1,
2001
(UNAUDITED)
<C>

134,665
320,665
225,624
211,925

70,169

(282,520)

36,046
916,413
71,467
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$ 121,428
329,312
209,043
170,502
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B O S $2,259,244 $2,232,130

Current Liabilities:

10 o e ol et O o 1 DL o $ 227,535 $ 185,411
ACCOUNTS Payab e ittt ittt et et et e et et e e e e et e 138,426 135,632
Accrued ResStruUCTUIrIng CoSts ittt ittt ittt ittt ittt ittt eeneenns 41,417 53,344
ACCTUEA EXPENSES ittt ittt ittt ittt teneeneeneeneeneeneeneeneeneeneensenns 294,879 315,026
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES ittt it ittt etennneeeeennaeeeeennaeeeeennaeeeeennaeeens 702,257 689,413
LoNg=Term DebD L o it ittt ittt ettt e et e et e et e et ettt ettt e e 585,661 583,337
Long-Term Liabilities ..ttt ittt ettt ittt ittt 232,168 230,991

Commitments and Contingencies
Stockholders' Equity:
Preferred Stock -- $1 par value, authorized 1,000,000 shares; none issued or

LSR8 = = o T B 1o T -= --
Common Stock -- $1 par value, authorized 300,000,000 shares; issued 122,908,000
shares at April 1, 2001 and at December 31, 2000 .....iuiiiiiiiniinnennns 122,908 122,908
Capital in Excess Of Par ValuUe ...ttt ittt teeneneineninneeenens 44,760 37,060
Retained Earnings ..ttt ittt it ettt et ettt et et e et et ettt 852,427 835,917
Accumulated Other Comprehensive LOSS ...ttt tin ittt eeneeneeneeneenns (57,829) (39,042)
Cost of Shares Held in Treasury -- 23,150,800 shares at April 1, 2001
and 23,360,000 shares at December 31, 2000 . ...ttt eneneeeeennnneenns (223,108) (228,454)
Total Stockholders' EqUity ..ttt ittt ittt ittt ittt e 739,158 728,389
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY ..ttt ittt teneeneeneeneeneenenn $2,259,244 $2,232,130

</TABLE>

The accompanying unaudited notes are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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IIT C. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED APRIL 1,
2001 AND APRIL 2, 2002.

PERKINELMER, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(UNAUDITED)
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
THREE MONTHS ENDED
APRIL 1, APRIL 2,
(In thousands) 2001 2000
<S> <C> <C>
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
L= S 15 VT 1= $ 23,496 $ 16,243
Deduct Net Income from Discontinued Operations .. ... ...ttt ittt ettt eeeeeeeeeneenennenns 440 7,487
Net Income from Continuing Operations ...ttt ittt ittt ittt ittt ettt $ 23,936 $ 23,730
Adjustments to reconcile net income from continuing operations to net cash
provided by continuing operations:
In-process research and development Charges ...ttt ittt ittt en et eeenenenens 2,493 --
Noncash portion Of restrUCLUTLING ..ttt ittt ettt ettt ettt et e et eeeeeeeeaeenenn (1,800) -
Amortization of debt discount and 1sSsSUANCE COSES ittt ittt ittt ittt it ettt 5,072 -
Depreciation and amortization ... ..ottt t ittt ettt e et e e e e e e e e et 21,727 17,666
Gains on dispositions and sales of investments, Net .. ...ttt ittt ittt (3,916) (8,454)
Changes in assets and liabilities which provided (used) cash, excluding effects from companies
purchased and divested:
ACCOUNES TeCEIVAID e ittt ittt ittt ettt ittt et ettt et eeee e eeeeeaeeeeeeaaeeaeeeneeieeeaaas 5,079 9,699
D 07 o ol ks I = (20,330) (16,621)
Accounts payable and aCCTUEd EXPEINSES . vt v et vttt eneeneeneeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeneeeeeeeeeeeneenns (10,294) (11,009)
Accrued restrUCTUTLING COSES 1 ittt ittt ittt it ettt it ettt ettt ettt teneeneeneeneeneenns (9,811) 1,469
Other assets and 1iabilities vttt ittt ettt ettt ettt et ettt et eeeneeeeeeeennnneeens (725) 3,706
NET CASH PROVIDED BY CONTINUING OPERATIONS & ittt ittt ittt teetnneeeeenneneeeeennneeeennneeeeennn 11,431 20,186
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS .ttt ittt ittt e esenaeeeeennaesesseneessenns 384 (10,736)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATIONS &ttt ittt it tttieeteennneeeeeeneeeeeennaeeeeennseeeennnneeeenens 11,815 9,450
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Capital eXPenditUre s ittt ittt ittt e et ettt et ettt ettt et et et et e e e e e e (14,363) (14,701)
Proceeds from dispositions of businesses and sales of property, plant and equipment, net ..... 1,440 23,267
Cost of acquisitions, net of cash and cash equivalents acquired ........ ..., (11,310) -=
Proceeds from sales/cost of purchases of investments ........iiiiitititititieeneneeenenrnenenns (6,942) (15,007)
[ o0 o L -= 47
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Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Continuing Operations . ...ttt ittt teeeeneeneeneeneenens (31,175)
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Discontinued Operations .. ...ttt ittt intieenenenenenenens (3,863)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES ..ttt ttntttnneneneneneneneneneneenenenens (35,038)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Increase in commercial PapPer DOXTOWINGS ittt ittt ittt it ettt ittt ettt teeineeeeneeneeneens 43,000
Decrease 1N Other et ittt it ittt ettt et e ettt et e e e e e e e e e e e e (2,999)
Proceeds from issuance Of COMMON STOCK 1 i ittt ittt ittt ettt ettt eeee et eeeneeeeeenneeeeannnns 8,368
Purchases Of COMMON STOCK .ttt i i ittt ittt it ittt ittt it ittt ie e enenns (793)
@R =] o e B W LY o Lo = (7,015)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES ..ttt ttnttnteneeneeneeneeneeneeneeneenenn 40,561
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents .........iuiiiuiiiniiiiiiiinnieneenenn (4,101)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents . ...ttt iiittntteteeeeneeneenennens 13,237
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period . ... ...ttt ittt iieeeneeneeneeneeneens 121,428
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period ... ...ttt ittt ettt eteeteeeeenaennenns $134,665
</TABLE>

The accompanying unaudited notes are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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III D. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1) NATURE OF OPERATIONS

PerkinElmer, Inc. is a high-technology company operating in four businesses
-- Life Sciences, Optoelectronics, Instruments and Fluid Sciences. The Company
has operations in over 125 countries and is a component of the S&P 500 Index.

The operating segments and their principal products and services are:

Life Sciences: Helps solve the complex analytical problems encountered in drug
discovery and genetic screening laboratories by providing solutions including
measuring instrumentation with interfacing software and a wide range of reagents
and consumables. Within the field of drug discovery, Life Sciences focuses on
customers engaged in pharmaceutical, biotechnology and academia laboratory
research and has a strong presence in research and high throughput screening
technologies. In genetic screening, the subject of the screen is a human
patient, typically a large number of patients. Customers include public health
authorities in the United States and around the world.

Optoelectronics: Produces a broad spectrum of optoelectronic products, including
high-volume and high-performance specialty lighting sources, detectors, optical
fiber communication components, emitters and receivers, mux arrays, imaging
devices and large area amorphous silicon detectors.

Instruments: Develops, manufactures and markets sophisticated analytical
instruments for research laboratories, academia, medical institutions,
government agencies and a wide range of industrial applications designed to
provide industry-specific "sample to answer" solutions. Analytical Instruments
provides world class analytical solutions employing technologies such as
molecular and atomic spectroscopies, high pressure liquid chromatography, gas
chromatography, and thermal and elemental analysis.

Fluid Sciences: Solves critical sealing and sealing system needs for customers
in aerospace, semiconductor processing and power generation equipment
manufacturing. Provides proprietary coating services and testing for
semiconductor process equipment, OEMs and users. The Company designs and
manufactures static and dynamic seals, sealing systems, solenoid valves, bellows
devices, coatings, advanced pneumatic components, systems and assemblies and
sheet metal-formed products for original equipment manufacturers and end users.
These products improve equipment efficiency and reliability, lower
cost-of-ownership of equipment, reduce harmful emissions and prevent
contamination.

(2) BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The consolidated financial statements included herein have been prepared by
the Company, without audit, pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC"). Certain information in footnote
disclosures normally included in financial statements has been condensed or
omitted in accordance with the rules and regulations of the SEC. These
statements should be read in conjunction with the Company's Annual Report for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000, filed on Form 8-K with the SEC (the
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"2000 Form 10-K"). The balance sheet amounts at December 31, 2000 in this report
were extracted from the Company's audited 2000 financial statements included in
the 2000 Form 10-K. Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified to
conform to the current-year financial statement presentation. The information
set forth in these statements may be subject to normal year-end adjustments. The
information reflects all adjustments that, in the opinion of management, are
necessary to present fairly the Company's results of operations, financial
position and cash flows for the periods indicated. The preparation of financial
statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. The results of operations for the three
months ended April 1, 2001 are not necessarily indicative of the results for the
entire fiscal year.

During July 2001, the Company approved a plan to sell its Security and
Detection Systems business. The results of operations of the Security and
Detection Systems business were previously reported as part of the Instruments
segment. The Company has accounted for the plan to sell its Security and
Detection Systems business as a discontinued operation in accordance with APB
Opinion No. 30, Reporting the Results of Operations and, accordingly, the
results operations of the Security and Detection Systems business have been
segregated from continuing operations and reported as a separate line on the
Company's Consolidated Income Statements and Statements of Cash Flows. The net
assets of the Security and Detection Systems business are reflected as Net
Assets of Discontinued Operations in the accompanying Consolidated Balance
Sheets.

45
(3) ACQUISITIONS

On July 31, 2000, the Company completed its acquisition of NEN Life
Sciences, Inc. (NEN), a provider of state-of-the-art drug discovery products,
services, reagents and technologies to the life sciences industry. Details of
the transaction and pro forma financial information were reported on a Current
Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on August 1, 2000 and in the 2000 Form
10-K. The Company purchased NEN from an investor group led by Genstar Capital
LLC for an aggregate purchase price of approximately $400 million. In connection
with the acquisition, the Company paid approximately $350 million in cash and
issued warrants to purchase approximately 600,000 shares of the Company's common
stock in exchange for all outstanding shares, options and warrants of NEN. In
addition, the Company repaid approximately $50 million of outstanding
indebtedness of NEN. The Company financed the acquisition and repayment of the
outstanding indebtedness with $410 million of commercial paper borrowings with a
weighted-average interest rate of 7%. These short-term borrowings were repaid in
early August with proceeds from the issuance of long-term convertible
debentures.

NEN's operations, included in the consolidated results of the Company from
the date of acquisition, are reported in the Life Sciences segment. The
acquisition was accounted for as a purchase under Accounting Principles Board
(APB) Opinion No. 16, Business Combinations. In accordance with APB Opinion No.
16, the Company allocated the purchase price of NEN based on the fair values of
the net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. The allocation of the purchase
price has not yet been finalized, however, the Company does not expect material
changes. Portions of the purchase price, including intangible assets, were
valued by independent appraisers utilizing customary valuation procedures and
techniques. These intangible assets included approximately $24.3 million for
acquired in-process research and development (R&D) for projects that had not
reached technological feasibility as of the acquisition date and for which no
alternative use existed. This allocation represents the estimated fair value
based on risk-adjusted cash flows related to the in-process R&D projects; these
costs were expensed in the third quarter of 2000. Other acquired intangibles
totaling $75.9 million included the fair value of trade names, trademarks,
patents and developed technology. Goodwill of $270.8 million resulting from the
acquisition of NEN is being amortized over 20 years. Approximately $4 million
has been recorded as accrued restructuring costs in connection with the
acquisition of NEN. The restructuring plans include initiatives to integrate the
operations of the Company and NEN, and reduce overhead. The primary components
of these plans related to employment costs, consolidation of certain facilities,
and the termination of certain leases and other contractual obligations. The
Company will finalize these plans during 2001, and the majority of the
restructuring actions are expected to occur during fiscal 2001.

The components of NEN's purchase price and preliminary allocation are as
follows:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
(In thousands)
<S> <C>
Consideration and acquisition costs:
Cash paid to NEN .......ccvuiuennn.. $ 348,918
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Debt assumed . ...ttt 48,262

Acquisition COSES +.iiiiiiiininn.. 13,647
Fair value of warrants issued ..... 6,940

Total ..o S 417,767

Preliminary allocation of purchase price

Current assetsS ... ieeiirnnenneannn $ 34,327
Property, plant & equipment ....... 59,755
Other assets ......oiiiiiiiiiinnan. 739
Identifiable intangible assets .... 75,900
In-process R&D ..., 24,300
Goodwill it i e 270,790
Liabilities ...oviuiiinniinennennn. (48,044)

Total ittt $ 417,767

</TABLE>

Unaudited pro forma operating results for the Company for the three months
ended April 2, 2000, assuming the acquisition of NEN was completed as of January
3, 2000, would be as follows: sales of $402.4 million; net income of $16.0
million; basic and diluted earnings of $.17 and $.16 per share, respectively.

The unaudited pro forma financial information is provided for informational
purposes only. It is not necessarily indicative of the Company's operating
results that would have occurred had the acquisitions been consummated on the
date for which the consummation of the acquisitions is being given effect, nor
is it necessarily indicative of the Company's future operating results. The
unaudited pro forma financial information does not give effect to acquisitions,
other than NEN, does not adjust for businesses divested, nor does it adjust for
foreign exchange. The pro forma amounts exclude acquisition related charges of
$24.3 million for purchased in-process R&D related to NEN.
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(4) RESTRUCTURING CHARGES

Consistent with the strategic direction of the Company and concurrent with
the reevaluation of existing restructuring plans at the time, the Company
developed additional plans during the third quarter of 1999 to restructure
certain businesses to continue to improve the Company's performance. These plans
resulted in a pre-tax restructuring charge of $23.5 million recorded in the
third quarter of 1999. The specific details of the actions and charges by
operating segment are discussed more fully in the Company's Annual Report filed
on Form 8-K for the fiscal year ended January 2, 2000.

As a result of a strategic review of the businesses to be restructured in
the Company's Fluid Sciences segment, continued aggressive actions during the
first quarter of 2001 by the Company to improve the cost structure of the
respective businesses, and lower than anticipated costs related to employee
separation costs, the Company adjusted its original estimate of restructuring
costs and recorded a credit of $1.5 million during the first quarter of 2001.

The following table summarizes the restructuring activity related to
the 1999 plan:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
THREE MONTHS
ENDED
(In millions) APRIL 1, 2001
<S> <C>
Accrued restructuring costs at beginning of period $ 5.9
Provisions ...t e e e
[0 0 B £ (0.5)
Reversals ..ttt i i i e e e e (1.5)
Accrued restructuring costs at end of period ..... $ 3.9
</TABLE>

During the fourth quarter of 2000, the Company reevaluated its 1999
restructuring plan due to the substantial completion of the respective actions
and the continuing transformation of the portfolio of businesses during 2000.
This resulted in the recording of a pre-tax restructuring charge of $15.1
million for actions to be completed in 2001 (the "2000 plan"). These charges
related to the Company's Life Sciences and Optoelectronics segments. The
principal actions in the restructuring plans included close-down or
consolidation of a number of offices and facilities, transfer of assembly
activities to lower cost geographic locations, disposal of underutilized assets
and general cost reductions. Details of the 2000 plan are discussed more fully
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in the 2000 Form 10-K.

The following table summarizes the restructuring activity related to the 2000
plan:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Three Months Ended
(In millions) April 1, 2001
<S> <C>
Accrued restructuring costs at beginning of period $15.1
Provisions ...t e e e e -
[0 0= o £ (3.9)
Accrued restructuring costs at end of period ..... $11.2
</TABLE>

The Company finalized its restructuring plans related to its acquisition of
the Analytical Instruments Division (AI) of PE Corp. (May 1999) during 2000.
Additionally, the Company recorded approximately $4 million as accrued
restructuring costs in connection with the NEN acquisition in August 2000. These
plans include actions primarily to integrate the operations of the acquired
businesses and improve their cost structures through consolidation or shutdown
of certain facilities, workforce and overhead reductions and the termination of
certain leases and other contractual obligations. The majority of the remaining
restructuring actions are expected to occur through fiscal 2001.

The following table summarizes the restructuring activity related to the AI
and NEN acquisitions:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Three Months Ended
(In millions) April 1, 2001
<S> <C>
Accrued restructuring costs at beginning of period $32.3
Provisions, through purchase accounting .......... -=
[ 0 e £ (6.0)
Accrued restructuring costs at end of period ..... $26.3
</TABLE>
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Cash outlays during the three months ended April 1, 2001 were $9.8 million
for all of these plans. The Company expects to incur at least $20 to $25 million
of cash outlays in connection with these plans throughout fiscal 2001. Most of
the actions remaining at April 1, 2001 are expected to occur in fiscal 2001.

(5) GAINS ON DISPOSITIONS

During the first quarter of 2000, the Company sold its micromachined
sensors and specialty semiconductor businesses for cash of $24.3 million,
resulting in a pre-tax gain of $6.7 million. Combined financial results of the
divested businesses for the first quarter of 2000 were not material to the
consolidated results of the Company. During the first quarter of 2000, primarily
in connection with the 1999 disposition of the Company's Structural Kinematics
business, the Company recognized $1.1 million of pre-tax gains from the
previously deferred sales proceeds as a result of the favorable resolution of
certain events and contingencies.

When supported by representations and warranties in the purchase and
sale agreements related to businesses sold, the Company appropriately defers
sales proceeds and records reserves for the contingencies related to the
respective representations and warranties. A portion or all of the deferred gain
is recorded in the period in which the respective representations and warranties
expire, lapse or are favorably settled by the Company. During the first quarter
of 2001, the Company recognized previously deferred pre-tax gains of $3.9
million. These gains related to certain businesses previously divested by the
Company and were comprised of the following: $1 million related to the 1998
disposition of its Rotron division; approximately $2 million related to the 1999
disposition of its KT Aerofab and Structural Kinematics businesses; and
approximately $1 million related to the 2000 disposition of its IC Sensors
business.

(6) OTHER EXPENSE

Other expense, net, consisted of the following:
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<TABLE>

<CAPTION>
Three Months Ended
April 1, April 2,
(In thousands) 2001 2000
<S> <C> <C>
Interest income ......... $ 916 $ 704
Interest expense ........ (10,710) (8,047)
Other ......coiiiiiiinnn. (3,122) 348
$(12,916) $(6,995)
</TABLE>

This net increase in other expense was due primarily to the higher interest
expense on increased debt levels resulting from acquisitions.

(7) ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable were net of reserves for doubtful accounts of $12.1
million and $14.5 million as of April 1, 2001 and December 31, 2000,
respectively.

(8) INVENTORIES

Inventories consisted of the following:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
April 1, December 31,
(In thousands) 2001 2000
<S> <C> <C>
Finished goods ......... $ 96,974 $ 84,184
Work in progress ....... 52,979 50,500
Raw materials .......... 75,671 74,359
$225,624 $209,043
</TABLE>
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(9) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment, at cost, consisted of the following:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
April 1, December 31,
(In thousands) 2001 2000
<S> <C> <C>
722 o Y $ 25,731 $ 26,058
Buildings and leasehold improvements.. 144,694 143,314
Machinery and equipment .............. 384,365 376,590
$554,790 $545, 962
</TABLE>

(10) INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets consist mainly of goodwill from acquisitions accounted
for using the purchase method of accounting, representing the excess of cost
over the fair market value of the net assets of the acquired businesses.
Goodwill is being amortized over periods of 10 to 40 years. Goodwill, net of
accumulated amortization, was $659 million and $660 million at April 1, 2001 and
December 31, 2000, respectively. Other identifiable intangible assets from
acquisitions include patents, trademarks, trade names and developed technology
and are being amortized over periods of 10 to 40 years. Other identifiable
intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization, were $257 million and $258
million at April 1, 2001 and December 31, 2000, respectively.

Intangible assets consisted of the following:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
April 1, December 31,
(In thousands) 2001 2000
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<S> <C> <C>

GOOAWILLl \it ittt e e e $ 720,557 $ 714,949
Other identifiable intangible assets .. 300,726 297,900
1,021,283 1,012,849
Accumulated amortization .............. (104,870) (94,784)
$ 916,413 $ 918,065
</TABLE>
(11) DEBT

Short-term debt at April 1, 2001 was $228 million and was comprised
primarily of commercial paper borrowings of $220 million. In March 2001, the
Company's $300 million revolving credit facility was refinanced and will now
expire in March 2002. The Company also refinanced the existing $100 million
revolving credit facility which now expires in March 2006. These agreements
serve as backup facilities for the commercial paper borrowings. There were no
amounts outstanding under these lines at April 1, 2001 or December 31, 2000.

Long-term debt at April 1, 2001 was approximately $586 million,
consisting of $115 million of unsecured notes which mature in 2005 and $471
million of convertible debentures. In early August 2000, the Company sold zero
coupon senior convertible debentures with an aggregate purchase price of $460
million. The Company used the offering's net proceeds of approximately $448
million to repay a portion of its commercial paper borrowings, which had been
increased temporarily to finance the NEN acquisition. Deferred issuance costs of
$12 million were recorded as a noncurrent asset and are being amortized over
three years. The debentures, which were offered by a prospectus supplement
pursuant to the Company's effective shelf registration statement, are due August
2020 and were priced with a yield to maturity of 3.5%. At maturity, the Company
will repay $921 million, comprised of $460 million of original purchase price
plus accrued original issue discount. The Company may redeem some or all of the
debentures at any time on or after August 7, 2003 at a redemption price equal to
the issue price plus accrued original issue discount through the redemption
date. Holders of the debentures may require the Company to repurchase some or
all of the debentures in August 2003 and August 2010, or at any time when there
is a change in control of the Company, as is customary and ordinary for
debentures of this nature, at a repurchase price equal to the initial price plus
accrued original issue discount through the date of repurchase. The debentures
are currently convertible into 10.8 million shares of the Company's common stock
at approximately $42.50 per share. Conversion of the debentures was not assumed
in the computation of diluted earnings per share because the effect of
conversion would have been antidilutive.
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(12) ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accrued expenses consisted of the following:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
April 1, December 31,
(In thousands) 2001 2000
<S> <C> <C>
Payroll and incentives ............c.i.n. $ 19,237 $ 39,946
Employee benefits .........c.iiiiiiinnnn. 49,577 48,101
Federal, non-U.S. and state income taxes. 51,212 39,140
Other accrued operating expenses ........ 174,853 187,839
$294,879 $315,026
</TABLE>

(13) COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Comprehensive income consisted of the following:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Three Months Ended
April 1, April 2
(In thousands) 2001 2000
<S> <C> <C>
Net INCOME ottt ittt ettt ettt et ettt s teeeenennnn $ 23,496 $ 16,
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Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:

31,

)

Gross foreign currency translation adjustments (14,577) (10,79
Unrealized gains (losses) on securities ...... (4,210) 7
(18,787) (10,72
Comprehensive inCome ..........ooieeeeneeeneennenn S 4,709 $ 5,52
</TABLE>
The components of accumulated other comprehensive loss were as follows:
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
April 1, December
(In thousands) 2001 2000
<S> <C> <C>
Foreign currency translation adjustments .... S (54,524) $(39,945
Unrealized gains on securities .............. (3,305) 903
Accumulated other comprehensive loss ........ S (57,829) $(39,042
</TABLE>

(14) INDUSTRY SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company's businesses are reported as four reportable segments which
reflect the Company's management and structure under four strategic business
units (SBUs). The segments' principal products and services are described in
Note 1 of this Form 10-Q. The accounting policies of the reportable segments are
the same as those described in Note 1 of the 2000 Form 10-K. The Company
evaluates the performance of its operating segments based on operating profit.
Intersegment sales and transfers are not significant. Unaudited sales and
operating profit information by segment for the first three months of 2001 and
2000 are discussed in Item 2 of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and are

considered an integral part of this note.

(15) DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

The results of operations of the Security and Detection business were
previously reported as part of the Instruments segment. The Company has
accounted for the plan to sell its Security and Detection Systems business as a
discontinued operation in accordance with APB Opinion No. 30 and, accordingly,
the results of operations of the Security and Detection business have been
segregated from continuing operations and reported as a separate line on the
Company's Consolidated Income Statements and Statements of Cash Flows. The net
assets of the Security and Detection Systems business are reflected as Net
Assets of Discontinued Operations in the accompanying Consolidated Balance

Sheets.
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<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
(IN THOUSANDS)

APRIL 1, 2001

<S> <C>
1S5 0= T $21,162
COStS and EXPENSES vttt ittt eeneeneeneeneeneeneenens 21,058
Operating income (loss) from discontinued operations ...... 104
Other 1InCOomME (EXPENSE) vttt ittt e m e e et e eeeeeeneeneeneeneenns (819)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations before income
=5 = (715)
Provision (benefit) for income taxes .........ciiiiiiiinn. (275)
Loss from discontinued operations, net of income tax ...... $ (440)
</TABLE>

(16) NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

The Company adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 137, Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities -- Deferral of the Effective Date of SFAS No.
133, effective January 1, 2001. The statement requires companies to record
derivatives on the balance sheet as assets or liabilities, measured at fair
value. Gains or losses resulting from changes in the values of those derivatives
are accounted for depending on the use of the derivative and whether it
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qualifies for hedge accounting. If a derivative is a hedge, depending on the
nature of the hedge, changes in the fair value of the derivative are either
offset against the change in fair value of the hedged item through earnings or
recognized in other comprehensive income until the hedged item is recognized in
earnings. The Company immediately records in earnings the extent to which a
hedge is not effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value. The
adoption of SFAS No. 133 did not have a material effect on the Company's results
of operations or financial position.

Forward currency exchange contracts are used by the Company primarily
to hedge certain operational (cash-flow hedges) and balance sheet (fair value
hedges) exposures resulting from changes in currency exchange rates. Such
exposures result from sales that are denominated in currencies other than
functional currencies of the respective operations. The Company enters into
these currency exchange contracts to hedge anticipated product sales and
recorded accounts receivable made in the normal course of business, and
accordingly, the hedges are not speculative in nature. As part of the Company's
overall strategy to manage the level of exposure to the risk of currency
exchange fluctuations, certain operating units hedge a portion of their currency
exposures anticipated over the ensuing twelve month period, using exchange
contracts that have maturities of twelve months or less. The Company does not
hold or engage in transactions involving derivative instruments for purposes
other than risk management.

The Company records its forward currency exchange contracts at fair
value in its consolidated balance sheet as other current assets or other accrued
expenses and, for cash flow hedges, the related gains or losses on these
contracts are deferred as a component of other comprehensive items in the
accompanying balance sheet. These deferred gains and losses are recognized in
income in the period in which the underlying anticipated transaction occurs. At
April 1, 2001, the Company had no deferred gains recorded. Unrealized gains and
losses resulting from the impact of currency exchange rate movements on fair
value hedges are recognized in earnings in the period in which the exchange
rates change and offset the currency gains and losses on the underlying exposure
being hedged.

(17) SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Stock Split: At the Company's April 24, 2001 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders, an increase in the number of authorized shares of common stock
from 100,000,000 shares to 300,000,000 shares was approved. At the April 24,
2001 Board of Directors meeting, a two-for-one stock split was approved and was
effected on June 1, 2001 by means of a 100% stock dividend to stockholders of
record as of May 15, 2001. The stock split has been retroactively reflected in
these financial statements.

Acquisition: On July 16, 2001, PerkinElmer announced its proposed
acquisition of Packard BioScience pursuant to an agreement and plan of merger
agreement dated as of July 13, 2001. In connection with this acquisition,
PerkinElmer agreed to issue 0.311 shares of PerkinElmer common stock for each
outstanding share of Packard BioScience common stock. PerkinElmer also agreed to
assume all outstanding options to purchase Packard BioScience common stock,
which will become exercisable for shares of PerkinElmer common stock following
the merger after giving effect to the same exchange ratio as offered to the
Packard BioScience common stockholders. The transaction will be accounted for as
a purchase in accordance with recently issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (SFAS) No. 141, Business Combinations, and SFAS No. 142, Intangible
Assets, whereby the purchase price will be allocated to the assets, including
all intangible assets, and liabilities assumed based on their respective fair
values.
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IV. OTHER INTERIM INFORMATION

IV A. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND
FINANCIAL CONDITION RELATING TO QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ACQUISITIONS AND DIVESTITURES

The Company acquired PE Corp.'s Analytical Instruments Division (AI) on
May 28, 1999 for an aggregate purchase price of approximately $425 million plus
acquisition costs. On July 31, 2000 the Company completed its acquisition on NEN
Life Sciences, Inc. (NEN), a provider of state-of-the-art drug discovery
products, services, reagents and technologies to the life sciences industry.

During the first quarter of 2000, the Company divested its micromachined
sensors and specialty semiconductor businesses for cash of $24.3 million,
resulting in a pre-tax gain of approximately $6.7 million. Combined financial
results of the divested businesses for the first quarter of 2000 were not
material to the consolidated results of the Company.

During July 2001, the Company approved a plan to sell its Security and
Detection Systems business. This business has been reflected as a discontinued
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operation in the Company's consolidated financial statements.
DISCUSSION OF CONSOLIDATED RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Revenues for the first quarter of 2001 increased $31.1 million, or 8%, and
were $404.5 million versus $373.4 million for the same period of 2000. Organic
growth was 7%, which the Company defines as growth in historical businesses plus
growth in acquired businesses assuming they were owned in prior periods, reduced
for the effects of exited businesses and foreign exchange. Revenues by segment
during the first quarter of 2001 versus 2000 are discussed in further detail
below under the caption "Segment Results of Operations."

The table below presents earnings per share before nonrecurring items,
discussed below in Segment Results of Operations, and goodwill and intangibles
amortization:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Three Months Ended
(In thousands except per share data) April 1, 2001 April 2, 2000
<S> <C> <C>
S = = $404,535 $373,403
CoSt Of SAlesS vttt ittt it ettt ettt e e 231,693 225,899
Research and Development COSts ......ieiiiininnnnnn. 21,837 19,640
Selling, General and Administrative Expenses ........ 91,164 85,400
Operating Income From Continuing Operations .... 59,841 42,464
Other Expense, Net . ...ttt ienennennnnn (12,916) (6,995)
Income From Continuing Operations Before Income Taxes 46,925 35,469
Provision for Income TaXE€S ... iuinenennnnnnenennns 14,390 9,877
Net Income from Continuing Operations .......... $ 32,535 $ 25,592
Cash Earnings Per Share (Diluted) ................... S .31 S .25

</TABLE>

Due to the number of changes in the portfolio of businesses, the table
presented below reconciles reported net income to net income before nonrecurring
items and goodwill and intangibles amortization.

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Three Months Ended

(In thousands except per share data) April 1, 2001 April 2, 2000
<S> <C> <C>
Adjusted Income From Continuing Operations Before Income Taxes ..... $ 46,925 $ 35,469
Nonrecurring Items:

In-Process Research and Development ..........coieiieenennennnn (2,493) -—

Deferred Gain Recognition, Net of Restructuring Related Charges 3,840 5,396

Net Nonrecurring TtemS . ...ttt it neneeneeneennnn 1,347 5,396

Goodwill and Intangibles Amortization .........ciiiiiiiniiiiinnnnnnn. (10,098) (6,612)
Income From Continuing Operations Before Income Taxes .............. 38,174 34,253
Provision for INCOME TaXES .ttt inineneneeneneneneneneneneenenens (14,238) (10,523)

Net Income from continuing operations ...........eveeueeennnnn $ 23,936 $ 23,730

Earnings Per Share:

BaS il ittt e e e e e e e e e $ .24 S .24
DIlUted ittt e e e S .23 S .24
</TABLE>
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SEGMENT RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Life Sciences

Revenues increased $29.6 million, or 75%, to $69.2 million for the
first quarter of 2001 versus $39.6 million for the same period of 2000.
Inclusion of revenues from the NEN acquisition and increased revenues in drug
discovery and genetic screening were the reasons for the increase in the first
quarter of 2001.

Operating profit for the first quarter of 2001 included goodwill and
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intangibles amortization from the NEN acquisition and certain nonrecurring
acquisition-related charges of $1.9 million and was $3.6 million compared to
$4.3 million for the first quarter of 2000. Operating profit for the first
quarter of 2001 before nonrecurring charges and goodwill and intangibles
amortization was $10.5 million versus $4.8 million for the same period of 2000,
representing an increase of $5.7 million, or 119%. Higher revenues discussed
above, increased sales of reagents and improvements in gross margin due to lower
manufacturing costs during the first quarter of 2001 drove this increase in
operating profit.

Optoelectronics

Revenues for the first quarter of 2001 increased $6.4 million, or 6%,
and were $120.9 million versus $114.5 million in the first quarter of 2000.
Strong revenue growth in telecom and digital imaging were primary contributors
to the increase.

Operating profit was $18.5 million for the first quarter of 2001 versus
$20.2 million for the first quarter of 2000. The operating profit for the first
quarter of 2000 included nonrecurring pre-tax gains on dispositions of $6.7
million. Operating profit before nonrecurring items and goodwill and intangibles
amortization was $20.2 million for the first quarter of 2001 versus $15.6
million for the first quarter of 2000. This represents an increase of $4.6
million, or 29%, before nonrecurring and goodwill and intangibles amortization
compared to the same period in 2000. The increase in operating profit was due
primarily to higher revenues discussed above, materials savings and benefits
from recently completed restructuring actions.

Instruments

Revenues for the first quarter of 2001 were $144.8 million compared to
$157.6 million for the first quarter of 2000. This decrease was due primarily to
the sale of the Company's Berthold business in late 2000.

Operating profit was $14.7 million for the first quarter of 2001,
increasing $3.4 million, or 30%, versus the same period of 2000. The operating
profit for the first quarter of 2001 included deferred gain recognition from a
prior period divestiture of approximately $1 million. Operating profit before
nonrecurring items and goodwill and intangibles amortization for the first
quarter of 2001 was $16.2 million versus $14.6 million for the first quarter of
2000.

Fluid Sciences

Revenues during the first quarter of 2001 increased to $69.6 million,
up $8 million, or 13%, compared to the same period of 2000. Increased revenues
in the Company's aerospace business offset lower revenues from its semiconductor
business due to overall market softening.

Operating profit for the first quarter of 2001 was $17.1 million,
increasing over 100% versus the same period of 2000. Operating profit for the
first quarter of 2001 included certain nonrecurring items: an in-process
research and development charge of $2.5 million, gains on dispositions of $2.1
million, an insurance settlement of $.9 million and a restructuring credit of
$1.5 million. Operating profit for the first quarter of 2000 included
restructuring charges of $2.4 million and deferred gain recognition from a prior
period divestiture of $.8 million. Operating profit for the first quarter of
2001 before these nonrecurring items and goodwill and intangibles amortization
was $15.7 million versus $10.7 million for the comparable period of 2000,
representing an increase of $5.0 million, or 47%. Higher revenues discussed
above,
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the effects of the sale of unprofitable businesses, and manufacturing and
productivity initiatives were the primary contributors to the increase in
operating profit during the first quarter of 2001 versus the same period of
2000.

RESTRUCTURING CHARGES

Consistent with the strategic direction of the Company and concurrent with
the reevaluation of existing restructuring plans at the time, the Company
developed additional plans during the third quarter of 1999 to restructure
certain businesses to continue to improve the Company's performance. These plans
resulted in a pre-tax restructuring charge of $23.5 million recorded in the
third quarter of 1999. The specific details of the actions and charges by
operating segment are discussed more fully in the Company's Annual Report filed
on Form 8-K for the fiscal year ended January 2, 2000.

As a result of a strategic review of the businesses to be restructured in
the Company's Fluid Sciences segment, continued aggressive actions during the
first quarter of 2001 by the Company to improve the cost structure of the
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respective businesses, and lower than anticipated costs related to employee
separation costs, the Company adjusted its original estimate of restructuring
costs and recorded a credit of $1.5 million during the first quarter of 2001.

The following table summarizes the restructuring activity related to
the 1999 plan:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
THREE MONTHS ENDED
(In millions) APRIL 1, 2001
<S> <C>
Accrued restructuring costs at beginning of period .. $ 5.9
ProvVISIioNns .ttt e e e -
[0 0T o £ (0.5)
ReVErSals t ittt ittt it i i i e e e e e (1.5)
Accrued restructuring costs at end of period ........ $ 3.9
</TABLE>

During the fourth quarter of 2000, the Company reevaluated its 1999
restructuring plan due to the substantial completion of the respective actions
and the continuing transformation of the portfolio of businesses during 2000.
This resulted in the recording of a pre-tax restructuring charge of $15.1
million for actions to be completed in 2001 (the "2000 plan"). These charges
related to the Company's Life Sciences and Optoelectronics segments. The
principal actions in the restructuring plans included close-down or
consolidation of a number of offices and facilities, transfer of assembly
activities to lower cost geographic locations, disposal of underutilized assets
and general cost reductions. Details of the 2000 plan are discussed more fully
in the 2000 Form 10-K.

The following table summarizes the restructuring activity related to the 2000
plan:

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Three Months Ended
(In millions) April 1, 2001
<S> <C>
Accrued restructuring costs at beginning of period .. $ 15.1
ProvVisSions ..t e e -
[0 0T B £ (3.9)
Accrued restructuring costs at end of period ........ $ 11.2
</TABLE>

The Company finalized its restructuring plans related to its acquisition of
the Analytical Instruments Division (AI) of PE Corp. (May 1999) during 2000.
Additionally, the Company recorded approximately $4 million as accrued
restructuring costs in connection with the NEN acquisition in August 2000. These
plans include actions primarily to integrate the operations of the acquired
businesses and improve their cost structures through consolidation or shutdown
of certain facilities, workforce and overhead reductions and the termination of
certain leases and other contractual obligations. The majority of the remaining
restructuring actions are expected to occur through fiscal 2001.

The following table summarizes the restructuring activity related to the AI
and NEN acquisitions:
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<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Three Months Ended
(In millions) April 1, 2001
<S> <C>
Accrued restructuring costs at beginning of period $32.3
Provisions, through purchase accounting .......... -
AT geS vttt it i e e e e e e (6.0)
Accrued restructuring costs at end of period ..... $26.3
</TABLE>

Cash outlays during the three months ended April 1, 2001 were $9.8 million
for all of these plans. The Company expects to incur at least $20 to $25 million
of cash outlays in connection with these plans throughout fiscal 2001. Most of
the actions remaining at April 1, 2001 are expected to occur in fiscal 2001.

Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document


http://www.secdatabase.com

OTHER EXPENSE

Other expense was $12.9 million for the first quarter of 2001 versus $7.0
million for the same period of 2000. This increase in other expense was due
primarily to the impact of higher interest expense on increased debt levels
resulting from recent acquisitions.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Reported income tax expense from continuing operations as a percentage of
pre-tax income was 37% and 31% for the first quarter of 2001 and 2000,
respectively, due, in part, to the income tax effect of nonrecurring items. The
effective tax rate before nonrecurring items and goodwill and intangibles
amortization was 31% for the first quarter of 2001 versus 28% for the same
period of 2000.

FINANCIAL CONDITION

Short-term debt at April 1, 2001 was $228 million and was comprised
primarily of commercial paper borrowings of $220 million. In March 2001, the
Company's $300 million revolving credit facility was refinanced and will now
expire in March 2002. The Company also refinanced the existing $100 million
revolving credit facility which now expires in March 2006. These agreements
serve as backup facilities for the commercial paper borrowings. There were no
amounts outstanding under these lines at April 1, 2001 or December 31, 2000.

Long-term debt at April 1, 2001 was approximately $586 million,
consisting of $115 million of unsecured notes which mature in 2005 and $471
million of convertible debentures. In early August 2000, the Company sold zero
coupon senior convertible debentures with an aggregate purchase price of $460
million. The Company used the offering's net proceeds of approximately $448
million to repay a portion of its commercial paper borrowings, which had been
increased temporarily to finance the NEN acquisition. Deferred issuance costs of
$12 million were recorded as a noncurrent asset and are being amortized over
three years. The debentures, which were offered by a prospectus supplement
pursuant to the Company's effective shelf registration statement, are due August
2020 and were priced with a yield to maturity of 3.5%. At maturity, the Company
will repay $921 million, comprised of $460 million of original purchase price
plus accrued original issue discount. The Company may redeem some or all of the
debentures at any time on or after August 7, 2003 at a redemption price equal to
the issue price plus accrued original issue discount through the redemption
date. Holders of the debentures may require the Company to repurchase some or
all of the debentures in August 2003 and August 2010, or at any time when there
is a change in control of the Company, as is customary and ordinary for
debentures of this nature, at a repurchase price equal to the initial price plus
accrued original issue discount through the date of repurchase. The debentures
are currently convertible into 10.8 million shares of the Company's common stock
at approximately $42.5 per share. Conversion of the debentures was not assumed
in the computation of diluted earnings per share because the effect of
conversion would have been antidilutive.

Cash and cash equivalents increased by $13.2 million to $134.7 million at
the end of the first quarter of 2001. Net cash provided by operating activities
for the first quarter of 2001 was $11.8 million and was comprised of net income
from continuing operations before depreciation, amortization and other noncash
items of $47.5 million and a $36.1 million net change in certain assets and
liabilities during the first quarter of 2001. The largest component of this net
change was a $20.3 million increase in inventories. Capital expenditures for the
first quarter of 2001 were $14.4 million.

V. FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION AND FACTORS AFFECTING FUTURE PERFORMANCE

This Report contains "forward-looking" statements within the meaning of
Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934. For this purpose, any statements contained in this Report
that relate to prospective events or developments are deemed to be
forward-looking statements. Words such as "believes," "anticipates," "plans,"
"expects," "will" and similar expressions are intended to identify
forward-looking statements. While the Company may elect to update
forward-looking statements in the future, it specifically disclaims any
obligation to do so, even if the Company's estimates change, and readers should
not rely on these forward-looking statements as representing the Company's views
as of any date subsequent to the date of this Report. A number of important
factors and uncertainties could cause actual results to differ materially from
those described in these forward-looking statements, including without
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limitation the risk factors set forth in the Company's Annual Report on Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000, included as exhibit 99.1
hereto, which are expressly incorporated by reference herein.
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SIGNATURES
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

PERKINELMER, INC.

Date: August 3, 2001 By: /s/ Terrance L. Carlson
Terrance L. Carlson
Senior Vice President, General
Counsel and Clerk

57
EXHIBIT INDEX
Exhibit 23.1 Consent of Independent Public Accountants
Exhibit 99.1 Risk Factors from the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K

for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000.
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1
Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

As independent public accountants, we hereby consent to the incorporation
by reference of our report dated January 25,2001 (except with respect to the
matters discussed in Notes 7 and 25, for which the dates are August 2, 2001
and June 1, 2001, respectively), included in this Form 8-K into Registration
Statements previously filed by PerkinElmer, Inc. on, respectively, Form S5-8,
File No. 2-98168; Form S-8, File No. 33-36082; Form S-8, File No. 33-35379;
Form S-8, File No. 33-49898; Form S-8, File No. 33-57606; Form S-8, File No.
33-54785; Form S-8, File No. 33-62805; Form S-8, File No. 333-8811; Form S-8,
File No. 333-32059; Form S-8, File No. 333-32463; Form S-8, File No. 33-59675;
Form S5-8, File No. 333-50953; Form S-8, File No. 333-56921; Form S-8, File No.
333-58517; Form S-8, File No. 333-61615; Form S-8, File No. 333-65367; Form S-8,
File No. 333-69115; Form S-8, File No. 333-70977; Form S-3, File No. 333-71069;
Form S-8, File No. 333-81759; From S-4, File No. 333-91535; Form S-8, File No.
333-30150; Form S-3, File No. 333-59446 and Form S-8, File No. 333-61938.

/s/ ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
August 3, 2001
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Exhibit 99.1

The following important factors affect our business and operations
generally or affect multiple segments of our business and operations:

OUR OPERATING RESULTS COULD BE HARMED IF THE INDUSTRIES INTO WHICH WE SELL
OUR PRODUCTS ARE IN DOWNWARD CYCLES.

Some of the industries and markets into which we sell our products are
cyclical. Industry downturns often are characterized by reduced product
demand, excess manufacturing capacity and erosion of average selling
prices. Any significant downturn in our customers' markets or in general
economic conditions would likely result in a reduction in demand for our
products and could harm our business. For example, in 1998 the operating
results of our Fluid Sciences segment were adversely affected by the
downturn in the semiconductor market.

IF WE DO NOT INTRODUCE NEW PRODUCTS IN A TIMELY MANNER, OUR PRODUCTS COULD
BECOME OBSOLETE, AND OUR OPERATING RESULTS WOULD SUFFER.

We sell many of our products in industries characterized by rapid
technological changes, frequent new product and service introductions and
evolving industry standards. Without the timely introduction of new
products and enhancements, our products could become technologically
obsolete over time, in which case our revenue and operating results would
suffer. The success of our new product offerings will depend upon several
factors, including our ability to:

accurately anticipate customer needs;
- innovate and develop new technologies and applications;
- successfully commercialize new technologies in a timely manner;

- price our products competitively and manufacture and deliver our
products in sufficient volumes and on time; and

- differentiate our offerings from our competitors' offerings.

Many of our products are used by our customers to develop, test and
manufacture their products. We therefore must anticipate industry trends
and develop products in advance of the commercialization of our customers'
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products. In developing any new product, we may be required to make a
substantial investment before we can determine the commercial viability of
the new product. If we fail to accurately foresee our customers' needs and
future activities, we may invest heavily in research and development of
products that do not lead to significant revenue.

ECONOMIC, POLITICAL AND OTHER RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH INTERNATIONAL SALES AND
OPERATIONS COULD ADVERSELY AFFECT OUR SALES.

Since we sell our products worldwide, our businesses are subject to
risks associated with doing business internationally. We anticipate that
revenue from international operations will continue to represent a
substantial portion of our total revenue. In addition, many of our
manufacturing facilities, employees and suppliers are located outside the
United States. Accordingly, our future results could be harmed by a variety
of factors, including:

- changes in foreign currency exchange rates;

- changes in a country's or region's political or economic conditions,
particularly in developing or emerging markets;

- longer payment cycles of foreign customers and difficulty of
collecting receivables in foreign jurisdictions;

- trade protection measures and import or export licensing requirements;
- differing tax laws and changes in those laws;

- difficulty in staffing and managing widespread operations;

- differing labor laws and changes in those laws;

- differing protection of intellectual property and changes in that
protection; and

- differing regulatory requirements and changes in those requirements.

FLUCTUATIONS IN OUR QUARTERLY OPERATING RESULTS MAY CAUSE OUR STOCK PRICE
TO DECLINE.

Given the nature of the markets in which we participate, we cannot
reliably predict future revenue and profitability. Changes in competitive,
market and economic conditions may cause us to adjust our operations. A
high proportion of our costs are fixed, due in part to our significant
sales, research and development and manufacturing costs. Thus, small
declines in revenue could disproportionately affect our
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operating results in a quarter. Factors that may affect our quarterly
operating results and the market price of our common stock include:

- demand for and market acceptance of our products;
- competitive pressures resulting in lower selling prices;

- adverse changes in the level of economic activity in regions in which
we do business;

- adverse changes in industries, such as pharmaceutical discovery,
telecommunications, semiconductors and electronics, on which we are
particularly dependent;

- changes in the portions of our revenue represented by our various
products and customers;

- delays or problems in the introduction of new products;

- our competitors' announcement or introduction of new products,
services or technological innovations;

- increased costs of raw materials or supplies; and
- changes in the volume or timing of product orders.

In addition, the stock market has experienced extreme price and volume
fluctuations. This volatility has significantly affected the market prices
of securities for reasons frequently unrelated to or disproportionate to
the operating performance of specific companies. These broad market
fluctuations may adversely affect the market price of our common stock.

WE MAY NOT BE ABLE TO SUCCESSFULLY IMPLEMENT OUR ACQUISITION STRATEGY,
INTEGRATE ACQUIRED BUSINESSES INTO OUR EXISTING BUSINESS OR MAKE ACQUIRED
BUSINESSES PROFITABLE.

One of our strategies is to supplement our internal growth by
acquiring businesses and technologies that complement or augment our
existing product lines. We may be unable to identify or complete promising
acquisitions for many reasons, including:

- competition among buyers;
- the need for regulatory approvals, including antitrust approvals; and

- the high valuations of businesses.

Some of the businesses we may seek to acquire may be marginally
profitable or unprofitable. For these acquired businesses to achieve
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acceptable levels of profitability, we must improve their management,
operations, products and market penetration. We may not be successful in
this regard and may encounter other difficulties in integrating acquired
businesses into our existing operations.

To finance our acquisitions, we may have to raise additional funds,
either through public or private financings. We may be unable to obtain
such funds or may be able to do so only on unfavorable terms.

WE FACE AGGRESSIVE COMPETITION IN MANY AREAS OF OUR BUSINESS; IF WE DO NOT
COMPETE EFFECTIVELY, OUR BUSINESS WILL BE HARMED.

We encounter aggressive competition from numerous competitors in many
areas of our business. We may not be able to compete effectively with all
of these competitors. To remain competitive, we must develop new products
and periodically enhance our existing products in a timely manner. We
anticipate that we may have to adjust prices of many of our products to
stay competitive. In addition, new competitors may emerge, and entire
product lines may be threatened by new technologies or market trends that
reduce the value of these product lines.

IF WE FAIL TO MAINTAIN SATISFACTORY COMPLIANCE WITH THE FOOD AND DRUG
ADMINISTRATION'S REGULATIONS AND THOSE OF OTHER GOVERNMENTAL AGENCIES, WE
MAY BE FORCED TO RECALL PRODUCTS AND CEASE THEIR MANUFACTURE AND
DISTRIBUTION, AND WE COULD BE SUBJECT TO CIVIL OR CRIMINAL PENALTIES.

Some of the products produced by our Life Sciences segment are subject
to regulation by the United States Food and Drug Administration and similar
international agencies. These regulations govern a wide variety of product
activities, from design and development to labeling, manufacturing,
promotion, sales and distribution. If we fail to comply with the FDA's
regulations or those of similar international agencies, we may have to
recall products and cease their manufacture and distribution. In addition,
we could be subject to fines or criminal prosecution.

CHANGES IN GOVERNMENTAL REGULATIONS MAY REDUCE DEMAND FOR OUR PRODUCTS OR
INCREASE OUR EXPENSES.

We compete in markets in which we or our customers must comply with
federal, state, local and foreign regulations, such as environmental,
health and safety and food and drug regulations. We develop, configure and
market our products to meet customer needs created by these regulations.
Any significant change in these regulations could reduce demand for our
products.
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OBTAINING AND ENFORCING PATENT PROTECTION FOR OUR PROPRIETARY PRODUCTS,
PROCESSES AND TECHNOLOGIES MAY BE DIFFICULT AND EXPENSIVE; WE MAY INFRINGE
INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS OF THIRD PARTIES.

Patent and trade secret protection is important to us because
developing and marketing new technologies and products is time-consuming
and expensive. We own many U.S. and foreign patents and intend to apply for
additional patents to cover our products. We may not obtain issued patents
from any pending or future patent applications owned by or licensed to us.
The claims allowed under any issued patents may not be broad enough to
protect our technology.

Third parties may seek to challenge, invalidate or circumvent issued
patents owned by or licensed to us or claim that our products and
operations infringe their patent or other intellectual property rights. We
may incur significant expense in any legal proceedings to protect our
proprietary rights or to defend infringement claims by third parties. In
addition, claims of third parties against us could result in awards of
substantial damages or court orders that could effectively prevent us from
making, using or selling our products in the U.S. or abroad.

WE HAVE SUBSTANTIAL EXISTING DEBT AND MAY INCUR ADDITIONAL DEBT IN THE
FUTURE.

We have substantial amounts of outstanding indebtedness. Our
substantial level of indebtedness increases the possibility that we may be
unable to generate cash sufficient to pay the principal of, interest on and
other amounts due in respect of our indebtedness when due. We may also
obtain additional long-term debt and working capital lines of credit and
issue additional commercial paper to meet future financing needs, which
would have the effect of increasing our total leverage.

Our substantial leverage could have significant negative consequences,
including:

- increasing our vulnerability to general adverse economic and industry
conditions;

- limiting our ability to obtain additional financing;

- requiring the dedication of a substantial portion of our cash flow
from operations to service our indebtedness, thereby reducing the
amount of our cash flow available for other purposes, including
capital expenditures;

- limiting our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in
our business and the industries in which we compete; and

- placing us at a possible competitive disadvantage with less leveraged
competitors and competitors that may have better access to capital
resources.
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A significant portion of our outstanding indebtedness bears interest
at floating rates. As a result, our interest payment obligations on such
indebtedness will increase if interest rates increase.
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